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Report of independent audltors

To the Board of Directors of
Easlpharma Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Eastpharma L(d.
(“Eastpharma”, “the Company”), and iLa subsidiaries and its jaint venture (together referred ta as “the
Gmup”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of December 31, 2014, and
the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year
then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory noles.

Management’s responsibility for the fınancial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and ftir presentation of these (Inancial statements in
accordance with international Financiai Reporting Standards, and for such intemal confrol as
management determines Is necessary ta enable the preparafion af financial statements that are fme
from material misstatement, whether due ta fraud or error.

Audltors’ responslbllity

Our responsibility Is ta express an apinion an these cansolidated financial statements based an our audit.
We conducted our audit in accardance with international Standards an Auditing. Thase standards require
that we compiy with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit ta obtain reasonable assuranca
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit invaives performing procedures ta obtain audit evidence abaut the amounts and disclasures in
the consalidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend an the auditors’ judgment,
inciuding the assessment of the risks af material misstatement af the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or errar. in making those risk assessments, the auditor cansiders intemal control relevant ta the
entity’s preparation and (air presentafion af the financial sbtements in order ta design audit procedures
that are apprapriate in the circurnstances, but not for the purpose af expressing an apinian on the
effectiveness af the entity’s internal cantral. An audit alsa inciudes evaluating the appropriateness of
accaunbng policies used and the reasanableness of accaunüng estirnates made by management, as
weil as evaluaüng the averall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and apprapriate ta pmvide a basis for
aur audit opinlan.

Opinlon

in our apinian, the accampanying cansalidated financial statements present fairiy, in ali material
respects, the financial position of the Graup as af December 31, 2014, and of its flnancial perrmance
and cash flaws for the year then ended in accardance with the international Financial Reporting
Standards.

Güney.ğbştıeUrn ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Müşavirlik Ananim Şirketi
A mşftibe<m’LŞn%a Yaung Global Limited

%9AiLALtMM4£

LŞLümaz.sMrPngagehıent Partıir

March 10, 2015

AÇem,,frmoltrnlLtoünğ£obdILimed



EASTPHARMA LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
ASAT3I DECEMBER20I4

(Amounts cxpressed in US Dollar.)

ASSETS
Audited Audited

31 December 31 December
CURRENTASSETS Notes 2014 2013

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other recdvables (net)
Inventories
Other current assets

Total Current Assets

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment (net) 10
Intangible assets (net) Il
GoodwilI 12
Investments in associates 13
Deferred tax assets 18
Other non-current assets 9

Total Non-Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

5 23,333,264 34,009,755

6 79,327,703 78,650,883

8 76,179,897 77,392,710

9 8,973,290 9,314,852

187,814,154 199,368,200

130,920,602 138,646,629
101,509,938 94,578,028
79,954,875 80,079,930

553,825 961,135
10,181,298 9,874,225

70,944 43,509

323,191,482 324,183,456

511,005,636 523,551,656

The accompanying notes form an integral pafl of these consolidated fınancial statements.



EASTPHARMA LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
ASAT3I DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts expresscd in US Dollar)

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Audited Audited

31 December 31 December
CURRENT LIABILITIES Notes 2014 2013

Short-term borrowings
Trade payables
Due to related parfies
Provisions
Other payables and accrued expenses
Current tax payable
CalI option liability

Total Current Liabilities

___________________ ___________________

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long-term borrowngs 14
Provision for employment termination benefıts 19
Defered income 16

Total Non-Current Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

______________ ______________

EQU ITV

Share capital 21
Premium in excess ofpar 21
Legal reserves 2!
Accumulated deficit
Actuarial gam arising from defıned benefıt plans
Foreign curency translation reserve

Equity attributable to equity
holders of the parcut

Non-controlling interests

Total Equity

__________________ __________________

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITV

14 85,500,768 78,283,078
15 16,070,024 16,705,263
7 24,937 26,749
17 1,837,387 2,718,529
16 13,054,984 12,190,177
18 13,341 41,512
21 499 643,654

1 16,50 1,940 110,608,962

85,046,027 85,223,923
2,162,379 2,327,356
7,1 83,953 7,075,041

94,392,359 94,626,320

210,894,299 205,235,282

338,250,000 338,250,000
99,774,445 99.774,445

1,215,248 1,215,248
(68,1 14,838) (66,496,890)

129,748 -

(130,149,955) (110,441,933)

241,104,648 262,300,870

59,006,689 56,015,504

300,111,337 318,316,374

511,005,636 523,551,656

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated fınancial statements.



EASTPHARMA LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts exprcssed in US Dollar.)

Audited Audi(ed
1 January— 1 January—

31 Decemher 31 December
Notes 2014 2013

Revenue 22 210,532,767 217,125,087
Cost ofsales 23 (130,676,122) (128,856,739)

Gross profit 79,856,645 88,268,348

Operating expenses 24 (63.525,091) (73,800,711)
Investment revenue 25 22,684.181 24,755,294
Finance cosis (net> 26 (40.296,557) (43,637,073)
Other gains and losses 27 (269,751) 6,391,506
Loss from investment in associates 28 (107,310) (461,101)

(Loss) / Profit before tax (1,957,883) 1,516,263

Currenttaxexpense 18 (13,341) -

Deferred tax income / (expense) 18 421,071 (453,879)

Tax income / (expense) 407,730 (453,879)

Net (loss) / profit for the year (1,550,153) 1,062384

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent (1.617,948) (529,423)
Non-controlling interests 67,795 l.591.807

(1,550,153) 1,062.384

Bask and diluted earnings
per share (US Dollar) 31 (0.02> (0.01)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated fınancial statements.
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EASTPHARNIA LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEMi ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

tAmounts ewwssed in US Dollar )

Audited Audited
Ijanuan— ljanuary—

31 December 31 December
2014 2013

Net (Ioss) / income for the year (1,550,153) 1,062,384

Other Cumprehensive Profit / (Loss):

ltems not ta be reclassifıed subsequently to
profıt ur Ioss 129,748 -

Actuarial gam arising from defıned benefit plans 162,185 -

Tax eflecı of other comprehensive income not to
be reclassifıed to profıt or loss (32,437) -

Items that may be reciassifled subsequently to
profıt ur Ioss (16,784,632) (43.262,328)

Foreign curency translation (16,784,632) (43.262.328)

Total comprehensive tass for the year (18,205,037) (42,199,944)

Total comprehensive Ioss
attribu(able to:

Equity holders of the parent (21,196,222) (50,924,783)
Non-controlling interests 2,991,185 8,724,839

(18,205,037) (42,199,943)

The accompanying notes form an integral pan of these consolidated financial statements.
4
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EASTPIIARMA LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts cxprcssed in US Dollar

Audited Audited
1 Januaıy- t ianuary

31 December 31 December
Notes 2014 2013

CASII FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net (loss) / profıt forthe year (1,550,153) 1.062,384
Adjustments tü reconcile net profıt to net

casli provided by/ (used in) openting activities:
Depreciation of properiy, plam and equipment 10 9.240,295 10,892.063
Amonization of intangible assets Il 8372.626 8.496.253
Impairment losses on intangible assets Il 556,847 481,208
Loss from investment in associates 28 407,310 461.101
Provision for employment termination benefıts 19 1,037,557 1,020,340
Gam on sale and disposal of propeny. plant

and equipment and intangible assets 27 (306,137) (3.054.909)
Gam on derivative fınancial instruments 26 (209,395) (105.962)
Release for doubtful receivables 6 67,777 -

Allowance for other doubtful receivables 6 (585,324) -

Amonization ofdiscount 25,26 (287.207) 173,264
Change in fair value ofcall option liability 27 (643,155) 572,616
Change in fair value ofbonds issued (4,330,858) -

Provisions 17 114,787 988,891
Bank loans interest expense 26 13,177,481 9.765.604
Bonds issued interest expense 26 5.083,98! 4,002,556
Change in a!Iowance for diminution
in value ofinventories 8 1,163,655 268,589
Unrealized foreign exchange Ioss 26,27 1.992,028 2,183,331
Interest income 25 (681,177) (370,572)
Interest income from deferred settlement term sales 25 (160,611) (78,295)
Ta’c (income)I expense 18 (407,730) 153,879
Changes in working capital:
lncrease in irade and other receivables (30,344,601) (17,262,736)
Increase in inventories (6.156.273) (18.230,727)
Decrease in other current assets 40,786 1.799,919
lncrease in irade payables 21,610,028 29,920,066
Decrease in due tü related parties (1,612) (4,467)
lncrease in other payables and accrued expenses 2,906,237 1,220,953

Cash generated from operations 20,106,962 34,655,352
Income tax paid (134,840) (423,276)
Provisions utilized 17 (784,491) (3,070,620)
Employmenttermination benefıts paid 19 (855,076) (1,106,114)
Net cash provided by operating activities 18,332,555 30,055,342

The accompanying notes form an integral pafl of these consolidated fınancial statements.
6



EASTPIIARMA LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts exprcsscd in US Dollar)

Auditcd Audited
1 January- 1 January

31 December 31 December

CASII FLOWS EROM INYESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Purchases of intangible assets
Proceeds on disposa! of intangible assets
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and

equipment

_________________ __________________

Net cnsh used in investing activitics

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest received
Interest paid
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Cash (used in) / provided by bonds issued

_________________ __________________

Net cash provided by fınancing activities

NET CHANGES İN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BECINNING
OF THE PERİOD

Effect of exchange nde changes on the balance of cash lıcld
in foreign currencies

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF
THE PERIOD

Changes in working capital include currency translation of US Dollar 13,159,858 (1 January —31 December 2013:
US Dollar 27,052,882). The distribution of the currency translation effect for the period is as follows:

Trade receivables
Inventories
Other receivables and current assets
Trade payables
Other payables and accrued expenses

2014 2013Notes

10
Il

5

(15,026,168) (26,777,437)
(19,379,687) (15,675,378)

582,087 1,066,042

628,734 8,208,020
(33,195,034) (33,178,753)

832,604 403,406
(11,884,557) (11,401,534)
216,195,197 305,859,955

(194,781,913) (320,228,022)
(5,083,980) 46,520,343
5,277,351 21,154,148

(9,585,128) 1 8,030,737

34,009,755 1 8,158,807

(1,100,547) (2,225,250)

23,324,080 33,964,294

t .January- 1 January
31 December 31 December

2014 2013

(29,667,781) (44,913,634)
(7,369,086) (15,903,106)

(300.776) (2,354,172)
22,245,267 31,765,305

1,932,518 4,352,725
(13,159,858) (27,052,882)

The accompanying notes form an integral paN of these consolidated fınancial statements.
7



EASTPIIARMA LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3! DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts exprcsscd in US Dollar)

t. ORCANIZATİON AND OPERATIONS OF THE CROUP

EastPharma Ltd. (dıe “Company” or “EastPharma”) is a limited company incorporated in Bermuda. The
Company was established on 17 August 2006 and the address of its registered offıce is Church Street Hamilton,
Bermuda. EastPharma is the indireci holding company of Deva Holding A.Ş. (“Deva”), a plıarmaceutical
company incorporated in Istanbul, Turkey which was acquired on 27 November 2006 and Saba İlaç Sanayi ve
Ticaret A.Ş. (“Saba”). a pharmaceutical company incorporated in Istanbul, Turkey which was acquired on 10
May 2007. EastPharma and its subsidiaries are collectively refered to as the “Group” in this report.

The Group operates in the pharmaceutical industıy and is one of the branded generic ptayers in the Turkish market.
The Group has a wide range of product portfolio and a country-wide organized sates force.

The Gmup has 129 plıarmaceutical molecules in 239 plıamıaceutical forms ranging from antimicrobial agents to
antineoplastics and antihypertensive.

The Group has four production facilities whiclı operate in compliance with the Good Manufacturing Practice
(“GMP”). During February 2008, the Company signed a definitive Asset Purchase Agreement with E. Hoffmann-La
Roche Ltd (Roche”) for the purchase of alt rights, liabilities and registrations of eight Roche products registered in
Turkey. There is no termination date for the Asset Purchase Agreement. in addition, on 16 May 2008, the Company
signed a License and Supply Agreement allowing EastPhamıa SARL to license an additional eight Roche products on
an exclusive basis for Turkey. The necessaıy regulatory approvats of the Turkish Competition Board were obtained
on 16 May 2008 and the agreement became effective on 19 June 2008.

The details of the Company’s direct and indirect subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013 are as
follows:

Place of
Ownership % incorporation Principat activity

3 1 December 3 t December
Direct hotdings: 2014 2013

Direct parent company of
EastPharma SARL 100% 100% Luxembourg Deva

lndirect holdinns:
Deva 82.2% 82.2% Turkey Production and sales of

human pharmaceuticals

Saba 99.9% 99.9% Turkey Production and sales of
human pharmaceuticals

EastPharma İlaç 100% 100% Turkey Non — operating

The Group has also interest of 21.75% (2013: 21.75 %) in a company incorporated in Singapore, Lypanosys PTE
LTD of which principal activities are production and sales of human phamıaceuticals.

8



EASTPHARMA LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES 10 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts expressed in US Dollar )

1. ORGANIZATİON AND OPERATİONS OF THE GROUP (cont.)

Main indirect company of EastPhanna is Deva Holding A.Ş., it owns 82,2% of the shares of Deva as of 31
December 2014. Non-controlling interest amount is mainiy refer to these shares.

A summaiy of fınancial statements of Deva, in US Dollar terms, is as follows;

31 December 31 December

Deva Holding 2014 2013

Current assets 178,091,777 186,732,394

Non-current assets 207,600,797 200,926,034

Current Iiabilities (113,346,389) (103,880,142)

Non-current liabilities (94,366,175) (94,611,034)
Equity attributable to equity
holders of the parent (177,999,056) (189,200,315)

Non-controlling interests 19,046 33,063

1 January- 1 Januaıy

31 December 3! December

2014 2013

Sales 214,038,210 221,186,642

Expenses (209,877,281) (207,979,222)

Net profıt for the year 4,160,929 13,207,420

Attributable to:
Equity attributable to equity
holders of the parent 4,170,663 13,199,541

Non-controlling interests (9,734) (7,879)

Net profıt for the year 4,160,929 13,191,662

Net profıt for the year 4,160,929 13,207,420

Actuarial gam arising from defined benefıt plans 164,43 1 -

Tax effect other comprehensive income not to be reclassifıed to
profit or loss (32,886) -

Foreign currency translation (59,496) (88,487)

Total comprehensive income for the year 4,232,978 13,118,933

Total comprehensive income
4,232,978 13,118,933

attrıbutable to:
Equity attributable to equity
holders of the parent 4,242,712 13,126,812

Non-controlling interests (9,734) (7,879)

4,232,978 13,118,933

9



EASTPHARMA LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOUDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Arnounts cxprcsscd in US Dollar.)

1. ORGANIZATİON AND OPERATIONS OF THE GROUP (cont.)

Description of operations:

The Group ciassifles its operations into three business segments: production and sale of human pharmaceuticals,
veterinary products and other. These segments are the basis on which the Group reports its segment information.
Further sement information about the Group’s operations is presented in Note 29.

The human pharmaceuticals segment derives the majority of its revenues from the sale of bmnded generic and
licensed producıs. Branded generic products are finished phantaceutical products ilmi Deva produces and setis under
its tmdemarked name mther than the chemical name of the active phannaceutical compound. Licensed producıs are
finıshed pharmaceutical pmducts that the Company produces and selis under licenses from other phantaceuıical
companies that hold the rights to the pharmaceutical compound. The business encompasses a wide mnge of
medicines combating diseases in the musculoskeletal. alimentary. meıabolism and cardiovascular system and
infections. Corporate expenses and assets are included in the human pharmaceuticals segment.

in addition to Group’s manufacturing activities, the Group also conducis, ot its microbiology İabomtories, lests and
research on the adaptation of mw materials, selection of micro-organisms. formulation of culture mediums, and
executes various test and research fermentations on pilot fermentators.

The veterinarv products segment derives its revenue from the sale of products that meet the needs of veterinarians and
animal breeders. Revenues of the veterinary pmducts segment are derived from the sale of 71 registered products and
97 presentation forms.

The operations in the other segment include cologne.

ilie Group’s operations and production facilitles are located in Turkey.

2. ADOPTİON OF NEW AND REVİSED İNTERNATİONAL FİNANCİAL REPORTİNC STANDARDS
(“IFRS”)

The accounting policies adopted in preparation of the consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2011
are consistent wiih those of the previous financial year, e>cept for the adoption of new and amended IFRS and
İFRİC interpretations effective as of 1 January 2013. The eftects of these standards and interpretations on the
Group’s fınancial position and performance have been discİosed in the related paragraphs.

2.1 The new standards. amendments and nterpretations which are eftective as ot 1 lanuan 2011 are as foİlows:

LIS 32 Financial lnstruments: Presenlalion — OJJsefling Financial .lsse(s and Financial !iabi!iıies (Aıne,;ded,

The amendments clarify the meaning of”currently has a legaliy enforceable right tü set-off’ and also clari1’ the
application of the IAS 32 offsetting criteria to settlemenl systems (such as centraİ clearing house systems) which
appiy gross settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous, These amendments did not have an impact on the
consolidated fınancial statements of the Group.

IRS lnıerpreıation 21 Levies

The interpretation cİarifles that an entity recognizes a Iiability for a levy when the activity that triggers payment.
as identifıed by the relevant İegislation, occurs. İt also cİarifıes that a levy liability is accrued progressiveiy oniy if
the activity that triggers payment occurs over a period of time, in accordance with the relevant legislation. For a
levy that is triggered upon reaching a minimum threshold, the interpretation clarifıes that no liability should be
recognized before the specifled minimum threshoİd is reached. The interpretation is not applicable for the Group
and did not have any impact on the financial position or performance of the Group
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EASTPIIARMA LTD. AND SUBSIDIARİES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLİDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts expresscd in US Dollar.)

2. ADOPTİON OF NEİV AND REVİSED İNTERNATİONAL FİNANCİAL REPORTINC STANDARDS
(cont.)

2.1 The new standards, amendments and interpretations which are effective as at 1 Januarv 2014 are as follows
(conta:

bİS 36 Inıpairnıenı ofAssets (ıl ı;ıended,) - Recoı’erabk ılınount Disdosuresfor Non-Financial asscts

As a consequential amendment to İFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement, some of the disclosure requirements in İAS
36 lmpairment of Assets regarding measurement of the recoverable amount of impaired assets has been modifled.
The amendments required additional disclosures about the measurement of impaired assets (or a group of assets)
with a recoverable amount based on fair value less costs of disposal. These amendments did not have an impact
on the consolidated fınancial statements of the Group.

bİS 39 Financial !nstrıınwnls: Recognition andA teasurenıciit (Amended) — Novation ofDeriı’atiı’es and
Continuation ofHedge Accoımting

Amendments provides a narrow exception to the requirement for the discontinuation of hedge accounting in
circumstances when a hedging instrument is required to be novated to a central counterparty as a result of Iaws or
regulations. These amendments did not have an impact on the consolidated fınancial statements of the Group.

IFUS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements (AnıendnıeııQ

IFRS 10 is amended to provide an exception to the consolidation requirement for entities that meet the defınition
of an investment entity. The exception to consolidation requires investment entities to account for subsidiaries at
fair value through profit or İoss in accordance with IFRS. This amendment does not have any impact on the
fınancial position or performance of the Group.

2.2 Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are issued but not yet effective up to the date
of issuance of the consolidated fınancial statements are as follows. The Group wili make the necessary changes if
not indicated otherwise, which wili be affecting the consolidated fınancial statements and disclosures, when the
new standards and interpretations become effective.

bİS 19 Defined Beııefit Plans: Enıployee Contributions (Anıendment

RS 19 requires an entity to consider contributions from employees or third parties when accounting for defined
benefıt plans. The amendments clarify that, if the amount of the contributions is independent of the number of
years of service, an entity is permitted to recognise such contributions as a reduction in the service cost in the
period in which the service is rendered, instead of allocating the contributions to the periods of service. These
amendments are to be retrospectively applied for annual periods beginning on or after l iuly 2014. The
amendments wili not have an impact on the fınancial position or performance of the Group.

fAS 16 and fAS 38 — Ciarification ofAcceptabk’ Afethods of Depreciation and Amorüsation (1ıııendments to IAS
16 and fAS 38)

The amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38, have prohibited the use of revenue-based depreciation for properıy, plant
and equipment and signifıcantly limiting the use of revenue-based amorıisation for intangible assets. The
amendments are effective prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments wili not have an impact on the fınancial position or performance of the
Group.
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EASTPHARMA LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLİDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts exprcsscd in US Dollar)

2. ADOPTİON OF NEW AND REVISED İNTERNATİONAL FİNANCİAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(cont.)

2.2 Standards issued but not yet effective and not earİy adopted (cont.)

Annual Jmprovenıenıs to 1ASJFRSs

İn September 2014, İASB has issued the below anıendments to the standards in relation to “Annual
Improvements - 2010—2012 Cycle” and “Annual Improvements -2011—2013 Cycle. The changes are effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or afler 1 JuIy 2014.

Annual !mproı’enwnts ta İFRSs 2010- 20/2 cyck’

JFRS 2 Share-based Paymenı

Definitions relating to vesting conditions have changed and performance condition and service condition are
defıned in order to clari’ various issues. The amendment 15 effective prospectively.

JFRS 3 Business Conıbinations

Contingent consideration in a business acquisition that is not classifled as equity is subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss whether or not it falis within the scope of İFRS 9 Financiaİ lnstruments. The
amendment is effective for business combinations prospectively.

IFRS 8 Operating Segments

The changes are as follows: 1) Operating segments may be combined aggregated if they are consistent with the
core principle of the standard. ii) The reconciliation of segment assets to total assets is oniy required to be
disclosed if the reconciliation is reported lo the chief operating decision maker. The amendments are effective
retrospectiveİy.

bİS 16 Properıy, Planı and Equipnwnt and bİS 38 Intangihk’ Assets

The amendment to IAS 16.35(a) and IAS 38.80(a) clarifıes that revaluation can be performed, as follows:
i) Adjust the gross carrying amount of the asset to market value or ii) determine the market value of the carrying
amount and adjust the gross carrying amount proportionateİy so that the resulting carrying amount equals the
market value. The amendment is effective retrospectively.

bİS 24 Related Partj’ Disdosures

The amendment clarifıes that a management entity — an entity that provides key management personnel services —

is a related paiy subject to the related party disclosures. The amendment is effective retrospectively.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Akaszıreı;ıenı

As cİarifıed in the Basis for Conclusions short-term receivables and payables with no stated interest rates can be
heid at invoice amounts when the effect ofdiscounting is immaterial. The amendment is effective immediateiy.

Annual Jrnproı’ements — 2011—2013 C’ycle

IFRS 3 Business Combinations

The amendment cİarifıes that: i) ioint arrangements are outside the scope of IFRS 3, not just joint ventures ii) The
scope exception appİies only to the accounting in the financial statements of the joint arrangement itseif. The
amendment is effective prospectiveİy.

Amendnzent to the Basis for Conchısions on IFRS 13 Fair Vahıe Measııreınent

The portfolio exception in IFRS 13 can be appİied to flnanciaİ assets, financial liabiİities and other contracts. The
amendment is effective prospectively.

fAS 40 Inı’estnıent Property

The amendment clarifıes the interrelationship of IFRS 3 and IAS 40 when cIassi’ing property as investment
property or owner-occupied property. The amendment is effective prospectiveİy.
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EASTPHARMA LTD. AND SUBSİDIAR1ES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts cxpressed in US Dollar.)

2. ADOPTİON OF NEW AND REVİSED İNTERNATİONAL FİNANCİAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(cont.)

2.2 Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted <cont.)

Annna! lmpiüvenıents tü L-IS/JFRSs (corn.)

Annual Improı’enwnts — 2011—2013 C’yde (can!.)

IFRS 15 — Reıenuefrom Conıracis with Custonıers

İn May 2014, the İASB issued İFRS 15 Revenue from Contracıs with Customers. The new fıve-step model in the
standard provides the recognition and measurement requirements of revenue. The standard applies to revenue
from contracts with customers and provides a model for the sale of some non-fınancial assets ıhat are not an
output of the entitVs ordinarv activities (e.g.. the saİe ofproperty, pİant and equipment or intangibles). IFRS 15 is
effecıive for reponina periods beginning on or after 1 ianuary 20İ7, with carİy adoption permitted. Entities viİI
transition tü the new standard following either a fuİI retrospective approach or a modifıed relrospective approach.
The modifıed retrospective approach would allow the standard to be appİied beginning with the curent period,
with no restatement of the comparative periods, but additional disclosures are required. The Group is in the
process of assessing the impact of the standard on fınancial position or performance of the Group.

IFRS 9 Financial Jnstruments — Fina! standard (2013)

İn July 2014 the İASB published the fınal version of IFRS 9 Financial İnstruments. The fınal version of İFRS 9
brings together the elassification and measurement. impairment and hedge accounting phases of the İASB’s
project to replace İAS 39 Financial lnstruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 is built on a logical,
single classiflcation and measurement approach for fınancial assets that reflects the business model in which they
are managed and their cash flow characteristics. Built upon this is a fonvard-looking expected credit İoss model
that wiil result in more timeiy recognition of oan İosses and is a single model that is applicable tü alI fınancial
instruments subject to impairment accounting. İn addition, IFRS 9 addresses the so-called ‘own credit’ issue.
whereby banks and others book gains through profıt or loss asa result of the value ortheir own debt falling due to
a decrease in credit wonhiness when they have elected to measure that debt at fair value. The Standard also
includes an improved hedge accounting model tü better link the economics of risk management with rs
accounting treatment. İFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after İ Ianuaty 2018. with early
adoption permitted. Retmspective application is required, but comparative information is not compulsory. Early
application of previous versions of IFRS 9(2009,2010 and 2013) is permitted ifthe date of initial application 15
before 1 February 2015. The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of the standard on financial position
or performance of the Group.

biS 27 Equity Alethod in Separate Financial Statenıenfs (Iıııendmeııts Iv biS 27)

İn August 2014, IASB issued an amendment to İAS 27 to restore the option to ise the equity method 10 account
for investments in subsidiaries and associates in an entity’s separate fınancial statements. Therefore, an entity
most account for these investments either:
• At cost
• İn accordance with İFRS 9 (or IAS 39), or
• Using the equity method
The entity must apply the same accounting for each category of investments. The amendment is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The amendments must be applied retrospectively. Early
application is permitted and must be disclosed. The amendment is not applicable for the Group and wiİl not have
an impact on the fınancial position or performance of the Group.
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EASTPHARMA LTD. AND SUBSIDİARİES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLİDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts cxpressed in US Doltar.)

2. ADOPTİON OF NEW AND REVİSED İNTERNATİONAL FİNANCİAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(cont.)

2.2 Standards issued but not vet effective and not early adopted (cont.)

ritiFüla! Inıpı’ot’eınents tü !AS/IFRSs (corn.)

Annual Jmprovenıents tü !FRSs — 2012-2014 Çı’dc

in September 2014, tASS issued ıheir annual cycie of improvements to İFRSs. Annual lmprovements to IFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle. The document sets out üye amendments to four slandards, excluding those standards that are
consequentially amended. and the reİated Basis for Conçlusions. The standards affected and the subjects of the
amendments are:
- İFRS 5 Non-current Assets Heid for Sale and Discontinued Operations — changes in methods ofdisposal
- İFRS 7 Financial İnstruments: Disclosures — servicing contracts; applicability of the amendments to IFRS 7 to

condensed interim financial statements
- İAS İ 9 Employee Benefıts — regional market issue regarding discount rate
- İAS 34 İnterim Financial Reporting — disclosure of infomiation ‘elsewhere in the interim fınancial report’
The amendments are effective for annuaİ periods beginning on or afler İ ianuary 2016, with earlier application
permitted. . The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of the amendments on fınancial position or
performance of the Group.

IFRS 10 and 1,15 28: Sok’ or Contribution of Assets hetıı’ecn an İnvestor and üs Associafe ot John 1 ‘enlure
.4,,ıendnıeııts,

in September 2014, İASB issued amendments to İFRS 10 and İAS 28. to address the acknowledged inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and İAS 28 in dealing with the İoss of control of a subsidiary that is
contributed 10 an associate or ajoint venture, to clarif,v that an investor recognises a fuli gam or Ioss on the sale or
contribution of assets that constitute a business, as defined in İFRS 3, between an investor and its associate or
joint veoture. The gam or ioss resulting from the re-measurement at fair value of an investment retained in a
former subsidiaıy should be recognised onl> to the extent of unrelated investors’ interesis in that former
subsidiary. An entity shall applv those amendments prospectively to transactions occurring in annual periods
beginning on or after İ Januarv 2016. Earlier application is permitted. The amendment ü not applicable for the
Gmup and wilİ not have an impact on the fınancial position or performance of the Group.

IFRS 10, JFRS 12 and IAS 28: Investnıern Entities: App!ying the Consolidahon Evception (lmendments ta !FRS
10 and biS 28)

in December 2014, İASB issued amendments lo İFRS 10, İFRS 12 and İAS 28, 1° address the issues that have
arisen in appiying the investment entities exception under İFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Staiements. The
amendments are applicabie for annual periods beginning on or after İ ianuary 2016. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendment is not applicable for the Group and wilİ not have an impact on the flnancial position or
performance of the Group.

1.15 1: Disc/osure Initiative (Anıendme,ns to biS 1)

İn December 2014, İASB issued amendments to İAS 1. Those amendments include narrow-focus improvements
in the following üye areas: Materiality, Disaggregation and subtotals, Notes structure, Disclosure of accounting
policies, Presentation of items of other comprehensive income (OCI) arising from equity accounted investments.
The amendments are applicabie for annual periods beginning on or after 1 )anuary 2016. Earlier appiication is
permitted. These amendments are not expected have signifıcant impact on the notes to the consolidated fınancial
statements of the Group.

14



EASTPHARMA tATil. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3! DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts exprcsscd in US Dollar )

3. SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statenzenı ofcoluyhiance

The aecoınpanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with international Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). The consolidated financial siatemenıs have been prepared on the historical cost
bask except for the revaluation of ceflain assets, The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Fzınctiona! currenev

The functional currencv of the Company is the US Dollar. uhich reflecis the economic substance of its opentions. The
Company uses the US Dollar in measuring items in its fınancial statements and as the reporting currency of the Group.
Ali cunencies other than US Dollar ait treated as foreign currencies.

The individual fınanciai staıements of each umup entity are presented in the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the ernity opentes (its functionai cunency); Deva is in TRY. Saba is in TRY and EP SARL is in
USD functionai currency. For the purpose of the consolidated financial staternents, the resuits and fınancial position of
each entiiy are expressed in US Dollar, which is the functional currency of the Cornpany.

in preparing the fınanciai staıernents of the individual entities. tmnsactions in cunencies other than each entitv’s
functional curency are recorded at the ntes of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each balance
sheet date, monetaiy assets and iiabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies am retnnslated at the rates
prevaiiing on the baiance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair va!ue that am denominated in foreign
currencies are tmnslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair vaiue was determined. Non-rnonetaıy items
that are measured in terms ofhistoricai cost in a foreign currency are not retmnslated.

The tnnslation for foreign currency transactions that are not in the functionai currency of the Company are
recorded in profit and Ioss.

The tnnslation of Groups foreign operations financiai staternents from ıheir functional currencv ta the Group’s
functional currencv is performed as follows:

• Assets and iiabilities are translated at ciosing exchange rate al the dale of each consolidated balance sheet
presented;

• Ali income and expenses are translated at the average exchanee rates for the period presented;

• Resulting exchange differences are inciuded in equity and presented separateiy as toreign currency
transiation reserve”.
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EASTPHARMA LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts exprcsscd in US Dollar.)

3. SICNIFICANT ACCOUNTINC POLICIES (cont.)

Cönsülidation

The consolidated fınancial statements incorporate the fınancial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control 15 achieved when the Company;

• Has power over the investee
• is exposed, or has rights. tü variable returns from its involvement with the investee. and
• has the abiiity to use its power to affect its relurns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee it’ facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above. Consolidation of a subsidiary bettins when
the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses control of the subsidiary.

Where necessarv, adjustments are made to the fınancial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with those used by other members of the Group. Ali intra-group transactions, balances. income
and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not resuit in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non
controlling interesıs are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interesıs in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the prorıt or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(1) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii)
the previous carrying amount of the assets (inciuding goodwill). and iiabilities of the subsidiary and any fon
controlling interests. When assets of the subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair values and the related
cumulative gam or Ioss has been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if
the Cornpany had directly disposed of the relevant assets (i.e. reclassifıed to profıt or Ioss or transferred directly to
retained earnings as specifıed by applicable IFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the former
suhsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accountinıt under IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or, when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition ofan investment in an associate or ajointly controlled entity.

Bnsiness crnnh inalions

The acquisition of subsidiaries and businesses are accounıed for using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured al fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabiiities incurred by the Group to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of ncquiree. Acquisition-related
costs are generaliy recognized in profıt ot Ioss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifıable assets acquired and the iiabilities assumed are recognized at their fair
value at the acquisition date, except that:

• deferred tax assets or Iiabilities related to employee benefıt arrangements are recognized and measured in
accordance with IAS 12 !ncoıne Taxes and IAS 19 Ernployee Beneflıs respectively;

• liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment armngements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree
are measured in accordance with IFRS 2 Share-basedPaynıent at the acquisition date; and;

• assets (or disposai groups) that are ciassifled as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-currenl Assets
Ileic/for Sale and Disconıinued Operations are measured in accordance with that Standard.
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EASTPHARMA LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES 10 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts expressed in US Dollar.)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

Business conıbınations (cont)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirers previously held equity interest in the acquiree (ifany)
over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identiflable assets acquired and the liabilitles assumed. If. after
reassessrnent, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identiflable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the fair value of the acquirers previously heid interest in the acquiree (if any). the excess is recognized
immediately in profıt or loss asa bargain purchase gam.

When the consideration transferred b the Group in a business combination includes assets or Iiabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arraneement. the contingent consideration is measured al its acquisition-date fair
value and included as pan of the consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of
the contingent consideration that qualify as measuremeni period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively. with
corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are adjusıments that arise from
addiıional information obtained during the ‘measurement period (which cannot excecd one year frorn the
acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition dale.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement peniod adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is ciassifled. Contingent
consideration that is classifıed as equity is not re-measured at subsequent reponing dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is classifıed as an asset or a Iiability is re
measured al subsequent reportin dates in accordance with IAS 39 Financial Insüjınzenıs: Recognition and
.%Ieasurement, or IAS 37 Provisions Conlingeni LkıhdiIk’s and Contingeıi :Issets, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gam or loss being recognized in profıt or Ioss.

When a business combination 15 achieved in stages. the Group’s previously heid equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured 10 fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains control) and the resulting
gam or Ioss, if any. 15 recognized in profıt or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition dale that have previously been recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassifıed to profıt or
loss wlıere such treatment would be appropriate ifthat interest vere disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in whieh the
combination occurs, the Group repons provisional amounts for the items for uhich the accounting is incomplete.
Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), or additional assets or
Iiabilities are recognized, 10 reflect new information oblained about facts and circumstances that existed ot the
acquisition date that, ifknown, would have affected the amounts recognized al that dale.

lnvestments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has signifıcant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in a joint venture. Signifıcant influence is the power to paflicipate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control orjoint control over those policies.

The results and assets and Iiabilities of associates are incorporated in these consolidated fınancial statements using
the equity method of accounting, except when the investment is classifıed as heid for sale, in which case it 15
accounted for under IFRS 5 Non-current Asseis Ek/d Jör Sa/e and Discontimıed Operations. Under the equity
method, an investment in associate is initialiy recognized in the consolidaled statement offınancial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognize the Group’s share of the profıt or Ioss and other cornprehensive incorne of the
associate. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds the Groups interest in that associate (which
includes any Iong-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognized only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behaif of the associate.
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EASTPHARMA LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TC THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts expressed in 135 Dollar.)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

lnvestments in associates (cont.)

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent hiabilities of the associate recognized at the date ofacquisition 15 recognized as goodwill
which 15 included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable asseis, hiabilities and contingent Iiabilities over the cost ofacquisition, after reassessment,
is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognized in the Group’s consolidated financial statements oniy to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

Gooa’ıı’i//

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a subsidiary represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilitles and contingent Iiabilities of the subsidiary
recognized at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is initially recognized as an asset at cost and is subsequently
measured at cost Iess any accumulated impairment losses.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units “CGU”
expected to benefıt from the synergies of the combination. CGUs to which goodwill has been aihocated are tested
for impairment, annually or more frequentiy when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carıying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata
on the basis of the carrying amount ofeach asset in the unit. An impairment Ioss recognized for goodwihl is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

On disposal of a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or Ioss on disposal.

Revenne reco2nition

Sa/e fgoods

Revenue is generated from the sale of pharmaceutical goods to third party warehouse distributors. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for goods provided in the normal course of
business, net of related taxes, and incentives.

The Group grants price concessions to its distributors, including sales and volume discounts and price refunds.
Certain discounts are granted at the point of sale or based upon vohumes purchased in a period. Subsequent to a
decrease in the reference price of any of its products, the Group may decide to refund its distributors a poflion of
the amounts paid for their prior purchases of such product. Ali price concessions are recorded as a reduction in
revenue. At the end of each period, a provision is recorded for the best estimate of these price concessions, based
on facts available at the time and the Group’s historical experience.

Standard prices for pharmaceutical products in Turkey are established by the Ministry of Health. Gross product
sales are subject to sales discounts, volume discounts and free of charge goods incentives.

Sales discounts are granted at the point of sale based on a fixed percentage and are recorded as a reduction of
revenue in the period of the sale. Sales discount percentages vary depending on the product sold. Volume
discounts are granted in the period of sahe based on a fixed percentage and the total sales made in the period.
Volume discount percentages vary depending on the distributor. The estimate for volume discounts is based on
actuah invoiced sales within each period ata fıxed discount rate and 15 recorded as a reduction of revenue in the
period of the sale.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

Revenıte recovıition (cont.)

Sa/e ofgoods (COFIL)

The Group alsa provides distributors with sales incentives in the form of free products (free of charge goods).
The free of charge goods incentive allows distributors ta provide its customers with free products at na cost to the
distributor as the Group wiil provide an equivalent amount of product ta the distributor. Distributors have the
option to be reimbursed for the cost of the free products through a reduction in amounts owed (sales credit) rather
than free goods. At the end ofeach period. distributors provide the Group with a total amount of goods provided
10 customers for free. The estimate for sales credit is estimated based on the actual number of products giyen for
free during the period and is recorded asa reduction ofrevenue.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when alI the following conditions are satisfıed:

• The Group has transferred to the buyer the signifıcant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods which
occurs upon delivery of the goods to the customer;

• The Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usualiy associated with ownership
nor effective control over the goods sold;

• The amount of revenue can be measured reliabiy;
• it is probable that the economic benefıts associated with the transaction wili flow to the Group; and
• The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliabiy.

İnterest revenuc

interest revenue 15 accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicabie, which is the nte that discounts estimated future cash receipts through the espected life of the
fınancial asset 10 that asset’s net canying amount.

(üst ofsa/es - free ofchare oodç

Free of charge goods provided to distributors are estimated based on the actual number of free products giyen by
the distributors (0 its customers dudng the period and the cost of the free ofcharge goods are ineluded as pan of
cost of sales,

Inventoties

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs, including an appropriate portion of fixed
and variable overhead expenses, are assigned to inventories held by the method most appropriate ta the particular
class of inventory, with being valued on a standard costing basis. At the end of the each reporting period, the
standard costs are updated based on the actual costs. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price
less alI estimated costs ofcompletion and costs necessary to make a sale.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (corn.)

Proyetıv, nia,ıt and ecşuipnwııt

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply ofoods or services, or for administrative purposes,
are carried at cost Iess accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment loss.

Fumiture and equipment are carried at cost Iess accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment Ioss.
Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets, other than Iand and construction in progress, over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight line method. Assets held under fınance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets. However, when there is no reasonable certainty that
ownership wili be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term
and their useful lives.

The depreciation periods for property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Useful life
Buildings 25-50
Machinery and equipment 4-30
Vehicles 5
Furniture and fıxtures 5
Leasehold improvements 2-3

The gam or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment 15 determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profıt or loss.

!ntwwibk’ assets

!ntangibk’ asseis acquired separately

Intangibles are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and any permanent impairment loss. Amortization 15
charged on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortization
method are reviewed at the end ofeach annual reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Internally-geneıvted intangibk’ assets — researeh and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognized as an expense in the period in which it 15 incurred.

An internaliy-generated intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal
project) is recognized oniy if, alI of the following have been demonstrated:

• The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it svill be available for use or sale;
• The intention to complete the intangible asset and use or seil it;
• The ability to use or seli the intangible asset;
• How the intangible asset willl generate probable future economic benefits;
• The avaiiability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or

seli the intangible asset; and
• The ability to measure reliably expenditure attributabie to intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognized for internaliy-generated intangible assets is the sum of expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognized, development expenditure is charged to profıt or loss in the period in which it
k incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets are reponed at cost less
accumuiated amortization and impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTINC POLICIES (cont.)

Intangihle asseıs (can!.

İntangib!e assets acqnired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are identifled and recognized separately from goodwill
where they satisfy the definition of an intangible asset and their fair values can be measured reliably. The cost of
such intangible assets 15 their fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination are reported at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.

Inıpairnıent oflanyihle and in!anih1e assets exchıding Eoo(bı’iI/

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment Ioss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a
reasonable and consistent basis of aliocation can be identifled, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are aliocated to the smailest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identifıed.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value Iess costs to seli and value in use. ln assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specifıc to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted. lf the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) 15 reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized immediateiy in profit or Ioss.

Where an impairment Ioss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of asset (cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverabie amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that wouid have been determined had no impairment !oss been recognized for the asset (cash
generating unit) in prior years. Reversal ofan impairment ioss 15 recognized immediateiy in profit or Ioss.

Borroı’işw cosis

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of quaIi’ing assets are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantialiy ready for their intended use or sale.
lnvestment income earned on the temporary investment of specifıc borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. AlI other borrowing costs are
recorded in the consolidated statement of income and comprehensive income in the period in which they are
incurred. Assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for intended use or sale of the
Group are license development costs. Transformation of these costs to be ready for saie state may take more than
one financial year. Borrowing costs incured for development costs are added to cost of the related asset until it is
ready for sale. During the year ended 31 December 2014 US Doliar 1,062,941 (31 December 2013: US Dollar
449,492) amount was capitalized on qualifying assets. The weighted average capitalization rate on funds
borowed generally is 6.6% per annum (2013: 6% per annum).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont)

Governuen( gran!s and incentives

Gmnts from the government are recognized at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
wili be received and the Group wili compiy with alI attached conditions. Government grants relating to
capitalized development costs are deferred and recognized in the consolidated statement of income and
comprehensive income over the period necessary to match thern with the costs that they are intended to
compensate. Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are included in non-current Iiabilities as
deferred income and are credited to consolidated statement of income and comprehensive income on a straight
line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

The Group receives assistance from Scientifıc and Technological Research Council of Turkey (“TUBITAK”).
TUBITAK runs a program to organize and regulate the Republic of Turkey’s suppofl to encourage research and
technology development activities of the industries in Turkey. Within the framework of this program, a certain
portion of the development expenditures of the industrial companies are reimbursed.

ıavanon and de/k,Ted income taves

lncome tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. Bermuda Ievies no tax on
profıts, dividends or income, nor 15 there any withholding tax or capital gains tax. Turkish tax legislation does not
permit a parent company and its subsidiary to file a consolidated tax return. Therefore, provisions for taxes for
Turkish subsidiaries, as reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial statements, have been calculated on
a separate-entity basis.

Curren! (av

The tax currentiy payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profıt differs from profıt as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it funher excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax 15 calculated using tax rates tlıat have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred lar

Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profıt, are
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for alI
taxabie temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized for alI deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it 15 probable that taxable proflts wili be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilized. Such assets and Iiabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from
goodwiil or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilitles in a
transaction that affects neither the taxabie profıt nor the accounting profıt.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profıts wiil be available to allow ali or part of asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax Iaws) that have been enacted or
substantiveiy enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or Ioss, except when
it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Prepaid corporation taxes and corporation tax Iiabiiities are offset as they relate to income taxes Ievied by the
same taxation authority. Deferred tax asset and liabilities for each separate subsidiary are not offset on a
consolidated basis. However, deferred tax assets and Iiabilities are offset in the individual fınancial statements of
the subsidiary as they are due to the same tax authority.

Provision for empiovışyen! lerniinalion beneflıs

Under Turkish Iaw and union agreements, Iump sum payments are made to employees retiring or invoiuntarily
leaving the Group. Such payments are considered as being part of defıned retirement benefıt plan as per
International Accounting Standard No. 19 (revised) “Empioyee Benefıts” (“IAS 19”). The retirement benefit
obligation recognized in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defıned benefıt obligation.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

Leasing - the Group as lessee

Leases are ciassifıed as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantialiy ali the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Iessee. Ali other leases are classifıed as operating leases.

Assets heid under fınance leases are recognized as assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the
lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding Iiability to the lessor 15
included in the balance sheet as a fınance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance
charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the Iiability. Finance charges are charged to profıt or loss.

Rentais payable under operating leases are charged to profıt or loss ona straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Beneflts received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are also spread on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Earııins yer share

Earnings per common share for 3 1 December 2014 and 2013 have been determined using the weighted average
number of the Cornpany’s shares, respectively. There are no potentially dilutive securities.

Financial instrnments

Financial assets and financial Iiabilities are recognized on the Group’s balance sheet when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Cash atıci cash eqıdı’a/ents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid
investments which have an original maturity ofthree months or iess from date of acquisition and that are readily
convertibie to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignifıcant risk of changes in value. The carıying
amount of these assets approximates their fair value.

Trade receivables, amouııs duefrom related paul/es and other receivables

Trade receivabies, amounts due from related parties and other receivables are measured at initial recognition at
fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Appropriate
allowances for estimated inecoverable amounts are recognized in profit or loss when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired. The allowance recognized is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition. The carrying amount of trade receivables, due from related partles and other receivables
approximates their fair value.

Bank borroiı’ings

interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafis are initialiy measured at fair value, and are subsequentiy measured at
amortized cost, using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognized over the term of the borrowings in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs.

Trade payabks, anıounts due to relatedpaıiies and other payables

Trade payables, amounts due to related partles and other payables are initially measured at fair value, and are
subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest rate method. The carrying amount of trade
and other payables approximates their fair vaiue.

Bonds issued

Bonds issued are initiaily measured at fair vaiue, net of transaction costs and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis.
The effective interest method Isa method of calculating the amortised cost ofa fınancial liabiilty and ofailocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the fınancial ilabiiity, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

Financial inslruments (cotıt.

Dcrivatiı’cflnancial iııstnmıents

The Group’s activities expose it primariiy to the fınancial risks of changes in foreign exchange rates. Derivative
financial instrüments are initially measured at fair value on the contract date, and they are re-measured to fair
value at subsequent reporting dates. The Group has not designated the derivative fınancial instruments as hedges
and, the changes in the fair value of non-hedging derivatives are charged to profıt or loss in the related year (Note
26).

The fair value of derivative instruments is classifled as a non-current asset or a non-current liability if the
remaining maturity of the derivative instruments is more than 12 months and as a current asset or a current
Iiability ifthe remaining maturity of the hedge relationship is Iess than 12 months.

Financial !iabilluies al FI TPL

Financial Iiabilities are classified as at FVTPL where the fınancial Iiability is either held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial Iiabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognized in profıt or loss. The net gam or Ioss recognized in profit or Ioss incorporates any interest paid on the
fınancial liability and is included in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in Note 33.

Sa/e ofIreasun’ shares

The sale of shares of Deva by subsidiaries decreased the interest of the Company in Deva. Changes in the
percentage of interests (increases and decreases) of a controlled entity that does not result in a change in control
do not fail within the defınition of business combination. in the accompanying consolidated fınancial statements
the sale of shares by subsidiaries is accounted for as an equity transaction at book value under IAS 27 (2003)
Separate Financial Statements.

Provisions and conlinot’nt İiabi/ilies

A provision is recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event and (i) it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefıts wiil be required to settle the
obligation, and (ii) a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
Where a provision 15 measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount
is the present value ofthose cash flows.

Contingent Iiabilities are assessed continually to determine whether an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits has become probable. If it becomes prohable that an outflow of future economic benefıts wili be required
for an item previously identifıed as a contingent liability, a provision is made in the consolidated fınancial
statements of the period in which the change in probability occurs (except in the circumstances where no reliable
estimate can be made).

A restructuring provision is recognized when the Group has developed a detailed formal plan for the restwcturing and
has raised a valid expectation in those aWected that it wiil carıy out the restructuring by starting to implement the plan
and announcing its main features to those affected by it. The measurement of a restructuring provision includes oniy
the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those amounts that are both necessariiy entailed by
the restructuring and not associated with the ongoing activities of the Group.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

Critical judgments in applying the Group’s accountin policies

in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 3, the Group Management
has made the following judgments that have the most signficant eftect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated
financial statements (apart from those involving estimations, which are dealt with below).

Recoverabilitv of internaİlv-zeneraıed liitanzible asseis

An internally-generated intangible assel arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal
project) is recognized only ifthe technical feasibility and the intention to complete the intangible asset, the abiiity
to use or seil the intangible asset are demonstrated, how the intangihle asset wili generate probable future
economic benefits is delermined, adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development
and to use or seli the intangible asset is availabie and the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its
development can be reliably measured. Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are
recognized as expense when incurred.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group Management reconsidered the recoverability of its
internaliy-generated intangibie assets. Management reviews the projects regularly for any impairment.
Determining whether assets are impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the internally-generated
intangible assets. The value in use calculation requires the Group Management to estimate the future cash flows
espected to arise from the sale of the products deveioped and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present
value. The first step for the estimation of the future cash flows is the assessment of the licensing process, the
application to the Ministry of l-leaith and marketability of the product. The second step of the impairment testing
involves the review and comparison of the projected cash flows with the actual financial data and assessment of
the market activity.

The canying amount of the intemaiiy-generated intangible assets at 31 December 2014 was US Doiiar43,051,761 (31
December 2013: US Doliar 29,208,139) and US Dollar 556,847 (31 December 2013: 481,208) impairment loss was
recognized in the year ended 31 December 2014.

Intanih1e asset reconi:ed on bnsiness comhination

The vaiuations of the Group’s product lines, license and supply agreernent and customer relationships were
performed by an independent valuation firm to determine the fair value of product lines and customer
relationships (which is regarded as their cost). Valuations were conducted to serve asa basis for allocation of the
purchase price to the various ciasses of assets acquired in accordance with IFRS 3 Bnsiness Combinations and
RS 38 lntangihk’ Assets. For IFRS 3 and IAS 38 purposes, the fair value defined is the amount for which an
asset couid be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, wiliing parties. In determining the fair
value of the intangible assets, the three traditionai approaches to valuation were considered: the cost approach, the
market approach and the income approach. The cost approach was utilized in the valuation of the Group’s
customer relationships as weli as in valuing the total assembled workforce, which is not considered a separately
identifiable intangible asset for fınancial reporting purposes. The income approach was utilized in arriving at the
value of the acquired product rights, license and supply agreement.

hnpairment ofzoodu’il/

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the CGUs to which
goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the CGU and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value. The recoverable
amounts of the CGUs are determined from value in use calculations. The key assumptions for the value in use
calcuiations are the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to selling prices and direct costs during the
period. The Group estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth rates are based on industry forecasts. Changes in
selling prices and direct costs are based on past practices and expectations of future changes in the market.

As at 31 December 2014, the recoverable amount of the CGUs is determined based on the value in use calculation
which uses cash flow projections based on fınancial budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period, and a discount rate of 10.7% per annum. Cash flows beyond that five-year period have been extrapolated
by using a steady 7% per annum growth rate consisting of 6.5% infiation and real growth rate of 0.47%.

25



EASTPIIARMA LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts cxpresscd in US Dollar )

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES 01 ESTIMATİON UNCERTAINTY
(cont.)

Critical judgments in applying the entity’s accountinı policies (cont.)

Imyairnwnr ofgoociıı’i!/ (coni.)

in allocating the impairment loss the Company considered the higher of the fair value iess costs to seli of the
cash-generating unit or its vaiue in use. The fair vaiue less costs to seil is determined by using market approach
which included guideline company method, guideline transaction method and pubiicly traded stock of the cash
generating unit. Fair vaiue less cost to seli also incorporated the value in use calcuiated from the cash flow
projections approved by the Group Management. Weiglıting factors were utilized to conciude on the fair value of
the cash-generating unit.

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, no impairment loss is recognized in the accompanying consolidated fınancial
statements.

Deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded using substantialiy enacted tax rates for the effect of temporary
differences hetween book and tax bases of assets and liabilities. Currentiy, there are deferred tax assets resulting
from operating loss carry-forwards and deductible temporary differences, ali of which could reduce taxable
income in the future. Based on available evidence, both positive and negative, it is determined whether it is
probabie that alI or a portion of the deferred tax assets wiil be realized. The main factors which are considered
include future earnings potential; cumulative iosses in recent years; history of ioss carry-forwards and other tax
assets expiring; the carry-forward period associated with the deferred tax assets; future reversals of existing
taxable temporary differences; tax-planning strategies that would, ifnecessary, be implemented, and the nature of
the income that can be used to reaiize the deferred tax asset. lfbased on the weight ofali available evidence, it is
the Group’s beliefthat taxabie profıt wiili not be avaiiabie sufficient to utiiize some portion of these deferred tax
assets, then some portion of or ali of the deferred tax assets are not recognized.

Net reallzahk vahte

lnventories are stated at the Iower of cost and net realizable value. Costs, including an appropriate portion of fixed
and variable overhead expenses, are assigned to inventories heid by the method most appropriate to the particular
class of inventory, with being valued on standard costing basis. At the end of the each reporting period, the
standard costs are updated based on the actuai costs. Net realizable value represents the estimated seiling price
less ali estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make a sale.

When the net realizable value of inventory is less than its cost, the inventory is written down to the net realizabie
value and the expense is included in the consolidated statement of income and comprehensive income in the
period the write-down or loss occurred. According to the calculations based on the nıanagement’s assunıptions, a
part of the inventories are written down to their net realizable vaiue since the net reaiizable value of these
inventories is Iess than their cost.

iLie ful life of intangibles

Product lines inciude trademarks, bio-iicense certificates, and internally-generated intangibie assets. lnternaily
generated intangibie assets represent the costs associated with obtaining approval from the Ministry of Health for
the Group’s products. Product lines have an average usefui life of iO-l5 years. At the beginning of 2012 the
Group Management reviewed the usefui iives of certain product lines. Based on the sales forecasts, useful lives of
some of the products have been extended to 15 years. Previousiy alI product lines had an average useful life of 10
years. Asa result ofthis change, the current year amortization charge became USD 1,473,613. lfthe change had
not been done the current year amortization charge wouid be USD 2,912,719. License and Supply agreements
have an average useful life of 8 years, and customer relationships have an average usefui life of 20 years. Other
intangible assets include mainly software rights and have an average usefui life of 3 years.
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5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Petty cash
Demand deposits
Time deposits
Cash and cash equivalents in cash flow statement
Interest income accruals

As of 31 December 2014, the Group’s time deposits vere Euro, NZD and US Dollar time deposit, and the
average interest rate for Euro time deposit is 2.05%, NZD time deposit is 4.25% and US Dollar time deposit is
3.05% (as of3 1 December 2013, the Group’s time deposits were Euro and US Dollar and the average interest rate
was 2.53% and 3.26%, respectively). The Group has made investments in short term time deposits and purchased
agreements which have an average maturity of one week.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group does not have any cash deposits pledged against the bank Ioans used (31
December 2013: Nil).

6. TRADE AND OTHER RECEİVABLES

The Group’s principal financial assets are trade, notes and other receivables. The Group’s credit risk is primariiy
attributable to its trade receivables. As of 3 l December 2014, two customers each represented 26% and 31% of
the total trade and other receivables balance, respectively (31 December 2013: 32% and 30%, respectively).

Trade receivables
Notes receivable
Other receivables
hess: Allowance for other doubtful receivables

2014 2013

19,204,294 19,814,308
60,081,785 58,760,946

626,948 75,629
(585,324) -

79.327.703 78.650.883

Notes receivable represents customer postdated cheques with maturities of less than one year and are non-interest
bearing.

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group provided provision in fuli for its alI past due trade and other
receivables. The rest of the receivables amount is neither past due nor impaired. For the year ended 31 December
2014, the average credit period on sales is 117 days (31 December 2013: 134 days).

Movement of allowance for doubtful receivables in value for the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 is as
fo t lows:

3,284,213 3,932,176
(67,777) -

(261.445) (647.963)
2.954.991 3.284.213

Impaired receivables have an aging of more than two years as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.

in determining the recoverability of trade receivables, the Group considers any change in the credit quality of the
trade receivable from the date credit was initialiy granted up to the reporting date. The distribution of the Group’s
human pharmaceutical products 15 made by the two largest wholesalers in the Turkish market with whom the
Group has not had past default experience. There is no concentration risk in other segments of the Group due to
the number of sma!ler customers.

3 1 December
2014

3 1 December
2013

27,094 28,422
3,939,355 4,820,096

19,357.631 29,115,776
23,324.080 33.964,294

9.184 45.461
23,333.264 34,009.755

31 December 3 1 December

Balance at 1 January
Reversal of provision
Translation effect
Balance at 31 December

For the year ended
31 December2ül4

For the year ended
31 December20l3
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(Arnounts exprcssed in 135 Dollar,)

6. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (cont.)

Provision for other doubtful receivabIes(-

Balance at t ianuary
Provision charge
Balance at 3 1 December

Collatemi received in relation to trade receivables vere as follows:

7. BALANCES AND TRANSACFIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Transactions between the Company and 115 subsidiaries have been eliminated on consolidation and are not
diselosed in tlıis note. The related pariy receivables and payables resulting from operating aclivities are settled in
the normal course ofbusiness. Details of transactions with other related parties are disclosed below.

Due to related parties

Benefits payable to the Board of Directors and individual
shareholders

Due to related parties balances consist of dividends
the Board of Directors members.

Compensation of key manaeement personnel

Short-term benefits
Employment termination benefıts
Total compensation

Raw materials
Work-in-progress
Finished goods
Goods in transit
Allowance for diminution

in value of inventories

Movements in the allowance for diminution in value of inventories are as follows:

Opening balance
Charge for the year
Provisions utilized
Translation effect
Closing balance

For the year ended
Il December 2014

For the year ended
31 December 2013

585,324 -

585.324 -

Leuers of guarantees

3 1 December
2014

3 l December
2013

6,966,706 7,13 9,299

3 1 December 3 1 December
20132014

24,937 26,749

24.937 26,749

payable to the individual shareholder and benefıts payable to

For the year ended
31 December20l4

8. flVENTORIES

For the year ended
31 December 2013

4,056,284 5,045,603
50.231 57,362

4.106,515 5,102,965

3 1 December 3 1 December
2014 2013

45.737,890 41,479,721
8.539,924 9,128,814

19,962,770 24,885,074
3.733,242 2,583,889

(1.793,929) (684,788)
76.179.897 77.392,710

For the year ended
31 December 2014

For the year ended
3! December 2013

684,788 498,313
1,331,238 1,229,912
(167,583) (961,323)

(54,514) (82,114)
1.793.929 684.788
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9. OTHER CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT ASSETS

3 1 December 3 1 December
Other current assets

Value added tax (VAT) receivable
Business advances giyen
Income accruals (*)

Prepaid expenses
Prepaid taxes
Other assets

_________________________ _________________________

() The Group receives government gnnts for cerıain development costs and propeny, planı and equipment used
in research and development activities. The balance consists of the income accrual for the grants receivable
from TUBİTAK (Scientific and Technological Research Council ofTurkey).

3 1 December 3 1 December
Other non - current assets

Prepaid expenses

2014 2013

6,268,663 6,170.354
149,541 234,818

1,243,604 1,145,006
918,730 1,084,180

93.328 203.779
299.424 476.715

8.973.290 9.313.852

2014 2013

70,944 43,509

70.944 43.509
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EASTPHARMA LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Anıaunts exprcssed in US Dollar.)

10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cont.)

Allocation of depreciation on property, plant and equipment and amortization of intangible asse(s (Note Il) is as
fo Ilo ws:

31 December 2014 3 1 December 2013

Cost ofgoods sold 8,646,477 10,069,688
Operating expenses 8,966,444 9,318,628
Capitalized on inven(ory 1.772,031 2,602,782

19,384,952 21,991,098

11. INTANGIBLEASSETS

Pmduct lines license Customcr Oıhcr intangible
Acgukiıion cost and suppl’ agreemcnt relationships asscıs Toıal

Atı Janoan2014 123.852.336 22.860.598 4.461,863 151.174,797

Cuncncv Iranslation (8.083.639) (567.167) (1 88.967) (8,839,773)

Addiıions () 20.332.628 . - 20,442.628
Capiıalizcd depreciation

‘mm propcrn, planı and cquipmcnt (Notc 10) . . 1.127.804 1.127.804

Disposals (588.707) . . (588,707)

At 31 Dcccmbcr 2014 135,622.61% 22.293.431 5,400,700 163,316,749

AccumuIa’ed amonization and impainucnt

AtI Januan 2014 (48.912.304) (5.632.336) (2.042.129) (56.596.769)

Currcncy trinslation 3.101.829 430.280 180.702 3.712,811

Chargc forihc>car (7.691.924) (680.702) (8.372,626)

lmpainncnt (556.847) . . (556.847)

Disposals 6.620 . 6.620

At 31 Deccmbcr 2014 (54.059.246) (5.892.758) (1.861.427) (61.806.811)

Caning amountat
81.563.372 16.400.673 3.539.273 101.509,93%

Il Dcccmbcr2ül4

__________________ _________________ _______________ ________________

Carnin amount at

t Januarv 2014 74.940.032 17.218.262 2.419.734 94.578.028
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EASTPHARMA LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts exprcssed in US Doliar.)

ii. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (cont.)

Aeguisition cost

____________________ ___________________ _________________ __________________

AtI Januaıy 2013

Currency translation
Addilions (9
Capitalized depreciation
bom propcrty, piant and equipment (Note 10)
Disposais

___________________________________________________________ __________________

At31 December 2013

_________________________________________________ _______________

Accumulated amoflization and impainııent
AtI January20l3
Cunency translation
Charge fr the year
impairmeni
Disposais

____________________ ___________________ _________________ __________________

At 31 December 2013

___________________ _________________ _______________ _________________

Carr>ing amount at
31 Decemher2ül3

Canying amount at
1 Januaıy 2013

(*) Additions mainiy consist of own-developed and technology-transfer products.

Product lines include trademarks, biolicense certificates, and internaliy-generated intangible assets. Internaliy
generated intangible assets represent the costs associated with obtaining approval from the Ministry of Health for
the Group’s products. Product lines have an average useful life of 10-15 years. At the beginning of the current
period, the management reviewed the useful lives of certain product lines. Based on the sales forecasts, the
estimated useful lives of some of the products have been extended to 15 years. Previously alI product lines had an
average useful life of 10 years. License and Supply agreements have an average useful life of eight years.

The license and supply agreement represents the value of the rights acquired through the License and Supply
Agreement signed between EastPharma SARL and Roche. Rights acquired through license and supply agreement
are assumed to have an economic life of 8 years.

Other intangible assets include mainiy software rights and have an average useful life of three years.

The Group’s customer relationships are comprised of the relationship with a large number of doctors and
pharmacies in the medical industry. The amount recorded 15 based on the Group Management’s best estimate of
the fair value of the intangibles. Fair value is based on the total cost the Group would incur ta replace such
relationships. The Group’s customer relationships are assumed to have an economic life of 20 years.

Total canying amounts of product lines, license and suppiy agreement and customer relationships are allocated to
human pharma segment.

Product lines license Customer Other intangible
and supply agreemcnt reiationships assets Total

129,16t),784 24,583,774 3,830.605 157,575,163

(17,903.254) (1,723,176) (468,333) (20,094,763)
16,078.210 - - 16,078.2 it)

-
- 1,099.453 1,099,453

(1,105,195) - - (1.105.195)
126.230,545 22,860.598 4.461.725 153.552.168

(49,926,670) (5,774,332) (2,039,279) (57,740.281)
6,391,398 912.700 399,651 7,703.749

(7.31 3,048) (78t),704) (402,5<)) (8,496,253)
(481,208) - - (481,208)

39,153 - - 39,153
(5 i.290,375) (5.642.336) (2,042,129) (58,974,840)

74,94t),170 17,218,262 2,419,596 94.578,02%

79.234.114 8.809,442 1,791,326 99.834,882
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EASTPHARMA LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOUDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts expressed in US Dollar)

12. GOODWILL

Cost

Balance atI January 2013 82,954,200
Net foreign currency translation <309,930>
Balance at 31 December 2013 82,644,270

Balance atI Januaıy 2014 82.644,270
Net foreign currency translation <125,055>
Balance at 31 December 2014 82,519,215

Accumulated impairment losses
Balance atI January 2014 (2,564,340>

Net foreign currency translation -

Balance at 31 December 2014 (2,564,340>

Carıying amount as at 3 1 December 2014 79,954,875

Carıying amount as at 31 December 2013 80,079,930

As at 31 December 2014, the Group assessed the recoverable amount of goodwill for Deva and Saba. The
recoverable amount of the CGUs is determined based on the value in use calculation which uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year period. and a discount rate
of 10.7% per annum. Cash flows beyond that five-year period have been extrapolated by using a steady 7% per
annum growth rate consisting of 6.5% infiation and real growth rate of 0.47%. The management beiieves that any
reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based would not cause the
carrying amount of goodwill to exceed ts recoverable amount. Total carıying amount of goodwili is ailocated to
human pharma business segment.

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, no impairment İoss has been recognized in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

13. INVESTMENT İN ASSOCİATES
3 1 December 31 December

Investments in associates % 2014

_________

2013

Lypanosys Pte Limited 21.75% 553,825 21.75% 961,135

553,825 961,135

in 2010 the Company entered into a shareholding agreement with a third party for the establishment of a new
company in Singapore. Lypanosys Pte Lirnited (“Lypanosys”), for the research, development and marketing of
products derived from the long chain fatty acid ester, known as LYPOIO, as antitheraupetic treatment for certain
inflammatory and other aiİments.

The Group increased its voting power to 21.75% during 2011 by acquiring the shares of another shareholder at
an amount of US Dollars 236,434. The amount was paid in cash. Prior to this acquisition, the Group heid Iess
than 20 per cent of the voting power in Lypanosys, but was exercising signifıcant influence by virtue of its
contractual right to appoint one director to the board of Lypanosys Company. The Board of Directors of
Lypanosys consists of 4 members and each has equal voting right. As such, there have been no changes in the
controlling power of the Company asa result of this acquisition.

The fınancial year end date of Lypanosys is 31 March. This was the reporting date estabiished when Lypanosys
was incorporated, anda change of reporting date is not planned. For consolidation purposes Lypanosys’ twelve
month financial statements to 31 December are used.

The operations of Lypanosys are limited. Total assets and Iiabilities amount to US Doliars 8,161,396 and US
Dolİars 5,169,748 as of3l December 2014, respectively. For the year ended 31 December 2014 there were no
revenues and the net Ioss was US Dollars 1,872,437.
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EASTPHARMA LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts expressed in US Dallar.)

14. BORROWINGS

Short term bank Ioans
Current portion of long term Ioans
Current portion of bonds issued

(*)

___________________ ___________________

Total short term borrowings

Long term portion of bank loans
Bonds issued (*)

______________________ ______________________

Total long term borrowings

Total borrowings

______________________

(iThe Group issued corporate bonds amounting to TRY 100,000,000 with three years maturity, quarterly
floating interest rate and monthly coupon payments. The bonds vere sold on 7 May 2013 only to qualifıed
investors. Annual simple yield of the bond 15 calculated by adding 300 basis points over the annual simple yield
of “reference govemment bond”. As of issuance date, annual simple and compound bond yield were 8.09% and
8.40%, respectively.

The effective interest mte is 11.58% as at 31 December 2014 and discounted estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the fınancial liability is calculated as TRY 99,828,942.

The Group has a number of borrowings with interest rates that are based on market interest rates at date of the
borrowings. The Group is exposed to interest rate fluctuations on domestic and international markets. The Group
attempts to mitigate this risk by maintaining an appropriate mix between fıxed and floating rate borrowings.

The repayments of the borrowings are as follows:

3 1 December

___________________

2013

On demand or within one year
in the second year
in the third year
in the fourth year
in the fıfih year

____________________ _____________________

The fair value of the Group’s short term borrowings approximate their carrying amounts due to the short-term
nature of the instruments. The fair value of the Iong-term borrowings approximate their carıying amounts as the
interest rates of the instruments are variable and are based on market rates.

3 1 December
2014

3 1 December
2013

67,428,555 54,980,594
18,113,099 22,560,939

(40,886) 741,545
85,500,768 78,283,078

41,955,009 38,584,478
43,091,018 46,639,445
85,046,027 85,223,923

170,546,795 163.507.001

3 1 December
2014

85,500,768 78,283,078
61,773,317 13,430,221

9,800,806 61,981,802
8,728,276 5,482,612
4,743,628 4,329,288

1 70.546.795 163.507,00 1
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EASTPHARMA LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts exprcssed in US Dollar.)

14. BORROWINGS (cont.)

The details of the Group’s long term borrowings are as follows:

a) A ban of US Dollar 2,166,668 (2013: US Dollar 3,611,112) was drawn down on 15 February 2011.
Repayments of interest and principal commenced on 14 Februaıy 2012 and wilI continue 611 9 February
2016 on semiannual basis. The ban carries interest of 5%.

b) A ban of US Dollar 1,500,000 (2013: US Dollar 4,500,000) was drawn down on 29 March 2011.
Repayments of interest and principal commenced on 29 March 2012 and wiil continue 611 27 March 2015 on
semiannual basis. The ban carries interest ofs%. This ban is also secured by the Group’s factory buildings
bocated at Çerkezköy and other buildings’ mortgages atan amount ofUS Dollar 15,750,000 (Note 17).

e) A ban ofTRY 1,717,486 (Equivalent ofUS Dollar 740,647) (2013: TRY 2,936,528) was drawn down on 26
January 2011. Repayments of interest and principal commenced on 25 April 2011 and wiil continue until 25
Januaıy 2016. The ban carries interest of 10.6%.

d) A ban of TRY 228,312 (Equivalent of US Dollar 98,457) (2013: TRY 495,376) was drawn down on 26
August 2011. Repayments of interest and principal commenced on 24 November 2011 and wiil continue
until 24 August 2015. The ban carries interest of 15.6%.

e) A ban ofTRY 790,100 (Equivalent ofUS DoIlar 340,722) (2013: TRY 1,701,838) was drawn down on 16
September 2011. Repayments of interest and principal commenced on 14 December 2011 and wiil continue
until 14 September 2015. The ban carries interest of 17.4%.

t) A ban of TRY 197,284 (Equivalent of US Dollar 85,077) (2013: TRY 627,511) vas drawn down on 14
May 2012. Repayments of interest and principal commenced on 14 June 2012 and wili continuc tilI 14 May
2015. The ban carries interest of 13%. This oan 15 also secured by pbedges on the purchased vehicles (Note
17).

g) A ban ofTRY 8,900.000 (Equivalent ofUS DoIlar3,838,027) (2013: TRY 13,350,000) was drawn down on
23 October 2012. Repayments of interest and principal commenced on 23 January 2013 and wiil continue tili
23 October 2016 quanerly. The ban carries interest of 11.2%. This ban is also secured by the Group’s
factory building located at Kocaeli Kartepe and other buildings’ rnortgages atan amount of TRY 20,000,000
(Note 17).

h) A ban ofTRY 3,000,000 (Equivabent ofUS Doblar 1,293,717) (2013: TRY 6,000,000) was drawn down on
24 December 2012. Repayments of interest and principal commenced on 24 March 2013 and wilI continue
until 24 December 2015 quarterby. The ban carries interest of 9.4%.

i) A ban ofTRY 508,939 (Equivabent of US Dollar 219,474) (2013: TRY 1,058,877) was drawn down on 5
October 2012. Repayments of interest and principab commenced on 5 November 2012 and viIl continue tiil
5 October 2015. The ban carries interest of 10.8%. This ban is also secured by pledges on the purchased
vehicbes (Note 17).

j) A ban of TRY 16,818 (Equivabent of US Dolbar 7,253) (2013: TRY 34,992) was drawn down on 12
October 2012. Repayments of interestand principal commenced on 12 November20l2 and wili continue tibl
12 October 2015. The ban carries interest of 10.8%. This ban is also secured by pledges on the purchased
vehicles (Note 17).

k) A ban ofTRY 15,137 (Equivalent ofUS Dohlar 6,527) (2013: TRY 31,494) was drawn down on 16 October
2012. Repayments of interest and principal commenced on 16 November 2012 and wibi continue tIli 16
October 2015. The ban carries interest of 10.8%. This ban is abso secured by pledges on the purchased
vehicles (Note 17).
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EASTPIIARMA LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TC THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
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14. BORROWINCS (cont.)

1) A ban of TRY 15.886 (Equivalent of US Dollar 6,850) (2013: TRY 33,054) was drawn down on 19
Cctober 2012. Repayments of interest and principal commenced on 19 November 2012 and wili con6nue fili
19 Cctober 2015. The ban carries interest of 10.8%. This ban 15 also secured by pledges on the purchased
vehicles (Note 17).

m) A ban of TRY 47,929 (Fquivalent of US Dollar 20,669) (2013: TRY 88,004) vas drawn down on 15
ianuary 2013. Repayments of interest and principal commenced on 15 February 2013 and wiil continue tili
15 Januaıy 2016. The ban carries interest of 9%. This ban 15 also secured by pledges on the purchased
vehicies (Note 17).

n) A ban of TRY 60,074 (Equivalent of US Dollar 25,906) (2013: TRY 110,274) was drawn down on 17
January 2013. Repayments of interest and principal commenced on 18 February 2013 and wiil continue tili
15 January 2016. The ban carries interest of 9%. Thk ban is also secured by pledges on the purchased
vehicles (Note 17).

o) A ban of Euro 5,000,000 (Equivalent ofUS Dollar 6,081,978) (2013: Euro 5,000,000) was drawn down on
10 IuIy 2013. Principal wilI be commenced on 18 JuIy 2016. Repayments of interest wili be on semiannual
basis. The ban carries interest of 4.3%.

p) A ban ofTRY 12,960,000 (Equivalent ofUS Dollar 5,588,857) (2013: TRY 16,200,000) was drawn down
on 1 August 2013. Repayments of interest and principal commenced on 3 February 2014 and wilI continue
tilI 1 August 2018 on semiannuab bask. The ban carries interest of 9.8%. This ban is also secured by the
Group’s two lands located at Çerkezköy atan amount ofTRY 16,200,000 (Note 17).

q) A ban of TRY 7,384,615 (Equivalent of US Doblar 3,184,534) (2013: TRY 8,000,000) was drawn down on
24 October 2013. Repayments of interest and principal wilI be commenced on 24 Cctober 2014 and wibi
continue tibI 19 Cctober 2017 quarterly. The ban carries interest of 11.0%. This ban k also secured by the
Group’s factory buildings located at Çerkezköy and other buildings’ mortgages at an amount of US Dollar
15,750,000 (Note 17).

r) A ban ofTRY 8,000,000 (Equivalent ofUS Doblar 3,449,912) (2013: TRY 10,000,000) was drawn down
on 4 December 2013. Repayments of interest and principal wibI be commenced on 4 June 2014 and wili
continue tilI 4 December 2018 on semiannual basis. The oan carries interest of 11.5%.

s) A oan ofTRY 16,000,000 (Equivalent ofUS Dollar 6,899,823) (2013: TRY 20,000,000) was drawn down
on 10 December 2013. Repayments of interest and principal wili be commenced on 10 December 2014 and
wibI continue tiil 10 December 2018 on semiannual basis. The ban carries interest of 11.5%. This ban is
also secured by the Group’s factory buildings located at Çerkezköy and other buibdings’ moflgages at an
amount ofTRY 20,000,000 (Note 17).

a) A ban of TRY 70.651 (Equivabent of US Dollar 30,467) (2013: None.) was drawn down on 3 1 Cctober
2014. Repayments of interest and principal commenced on 28 November 2014 and wiil continue tili 31
Cctober 2017. The ban carries interest of 11,40%. This ban is also secured by pbedges on the purchased
vehicbes (Note 17).

b) A ban of TRY 55.000.000 (Equivalent of US Doblar 23,718,142) (2013: None.) was drawn down on 23
December 2014. Repayments of interest and principal wili be commenced on 23 June 2015 and wili continue
tilb 23 December 2019 semi-annualby. The oan carries interest of 11,5%. This ban is also secured by the
Group’s headquarter building bocated at Habkalı atan amount of TRY 55.000.000 (Note 17).

c) The Group has spot boans amounting to TRY 150,615,000 (Equivaient of US Dolbar 64,95 1,054) (2013:
TRY 113,370,000), with an average interest of %10.49 and have loans with no interest amounting to TRY
2,054,629 (2013: TRY 2,033,013).

The Group uses its notes receivables as coblaterals for its revolving boans. As at 31 December 2014, the amount
of the notes receivables giyen as cobiateral is USD 37,269,518 (31 December 2013: USD 31,519,606).
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15. TRADE PAYABLES
31 December

20132014

16,068,355 16,703,594
1,669 1,669

16.070.024 16.705.263

Notes payable represents postdated cheques with maturitles of Iess than one year and are provided to the various
suppliers of the Group. The average credit period for the trade payables is46 days (3! December 2013:35 days).

16. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued sales discounts and free samples (*)

Accrued vacation pay
Payroli taxes and dues payable
Deferred income
Social security premiums payable
Accrued sales premiums and bonuses
Advances received
Accrued payroli
Cther accruals and liabilitles

(*) in 2010, the Group began receiving government grants for certain development costs incurred and propedy,
plant and equipment used in research and development activities from TUBITAK (Scientifıc and Technological
Research Council of Turkey). Government grants relating to capitalized development costs are deferred and
recognized in the consolidated statement of income and comprehensive income over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they are intended to compensate. Government grants relating ta property, plant and
equipment are included in other payables as deferred income and are credited ta the consolidated statement af
income and comprehensive income ona straight-Iine basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

Short-term trade payables
Notes payable

3 1 December

3 1 December 31 December
20132014

2,381,659 3,375,177
1,894,682 1,804,151
1,385,528 1,307,212
1,015,531 876,965

893,99! 901,859
882,136 312,131
207.558 63,908

72,486 212,5 12
4.321.413 3.336.262

13.054.984 12.190.177

(*) US Dollar 874,337 of the amount relates ta accrued reimbursement charges giyen
warehauses due to the price differences (2013: US Dollar 1,983,580).

31 December
2014

Deferred incame (*)

to pharmacies and

3 1 December
2013

7,183,953 7,075,041
7,1 83,953 7,075,041
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17. PROVISIONS

Provision for legal claims

Provision for seniority incentive and other beneflts

Provision for seniority

3 1 December 3 1 December

Provision for
legal claims

5,672,495

The provision for seniority incentive and other benefits as at 31 December 2011 included US Dollar 57.500
relating to special tennination benefıts gnnted to certain employees of Deva immediately prior to the acquisition
of EastPharma. The Group is obligated 10 pay these individuals incremental termination benefıts and alI other legal
termination beneflts, when the employee leaves the Group.

Total provisions for legal claims represent court cases opened and currentiy pending against the Group. The
current period eharge for the legal claims include the provisions for the court cases with discharged personnel and
tines received from the tax authority asa result of general inspections in pharmaceutical sector in Turkey.

2014 2013

1,779,887 2,656,029

57.500 62.500

1.837,387 2,718,529

incentive and other
benefıts
62,500

Total

5 ,734,995At 1 Januarv 2013

Charge for the year

Utilization ofprovision

Provision released

Translation effect

At3l December2üi3

At 1 January 2014

Charge for the year

Utilization of provision

Provision released

Translation effect

At31 December 2014

- 1,682,482 1,682,482

- (3,070.620) (3,070,620)

- (693.588) (693,588)

- (934.740) (934.740)
62,500 2,656.029 2,718.529

62,500 2,656,029 2,718,529

- 1,003.763 1,003,763

(5,000) (779,491) (784,491)

- (888,976) (888,976)

- (211.438) (2l1.438)
57,500 1.779.887 1.837,387
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18. TAXATION ON INCOME

2013

13,341 -

- 46,387

- (4,875)
13,341 41,512

For the year ended For the year ended
31 December20l4 31 December2ol3

13,341
(421,071) 453,879
(407,730) 453,879

(*) The iaw numbered 6111 containing the provisions regarding the tax amnesty was approved by the
Parliamentaiy Counsel and announced at Trade Registıy Gazette on 25 February 2011. Based on the provisions of
the law in consideration, the Group applied for taxable base increase for 2006, 2007, 2008 and 2009. in years
where taxable profit exists, corporate tax base was increased by the rates stated in Iaw, and corporate tax 15
calculated by applying 20% tax rate. in years where taxable profıt does not exist, corporate tax 15 caiculated by the
minimum amounts stated in Iaw. Additionaliy, the Group applied for an increase in the tax base calculated over its
carry forward tax losses transferred to 2010 and US Dollar 31,148,973 of carıy forward tax losses which represent
50% of the total previous year losses vere written off during 2011. No further audit tax wili be performed for the
years that the Group applied for taxable base increase.

Total charge for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profıt as follows:

(Loss) / Profit before tax

Corporate income tax rate

Expected taxation

tax effects nf:

- nondeductible expenses

- non-taxable income
effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries operating in other

jurisdiction
Income tax (income) / expense
per consolidated statement of income

For the year ended
31 December 2013

(1,957,883) 1,516,263

0% 0%

285,695 393,484

(2,418,914) (3,181,331)

1,725,489 3,241,726

(407,730) 453,879

3 1 December
2014

31 December

Current Tax Payable:
Current corporate and income tax
Effect of taxable base increase on corporate tax (*)

Less: Prepaid taxes and funds

Taxation:
Current tax expense
Deferred tax (income) / expense

For the year ended
31 December2oi4
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18. TAXATION ON INCOME (cont.)

Crnpnrate Tay

The Campany k based in Bermuda and Bermuda levles na tax on proflts, dividends ar Incarne, nor is there any
withhalding tax ar capital gains tax.

Corporaic’ Tat in Turkev

Turkish subsidiaries are subject ta Turkish carparate taxes. Pravisian is made in the accampanying cansalidated
fınancial staıements far the estimated charge based an the results for the year af those subsidiaries, Turkish tax
legislation daes nat permit a parent campany and its subsidiaries ta ille a cansalidated tax retum. Therefare,
provisians for taxes, as reflected in the accampanyina cansalidated linancial slaternents, have been calculated ana
separate-entity basis.

Turkish carparate mx 15 applied an taxable carpante incame, which 15 calculated fram the statutary accauntinu
profıt by adding back non-deductible expenses, aııd by deducting dividends received fram resident companies,
ather exempt incame and investment incentives utilized. The carpamte income tax mte in 2014 and 2013 is 20%.

in Turkey, advance tax returns are fıled ana quaneriy bask. Advance carparate incame tax rate applied in 201415
20% (2013: 20%). Lasses can be carried fanvard for offset against future taxable incame far tip ta five years.
Hawever, losses cannat be carried back far afTset against praflts fram previaus periads.

Funhermare, there is na pracedure far a Ünal and defınitive agreement an tax assessments. Companles ille their
tax retums between 1-25 April fallawing the clase af the accaunting year ta which they relate Tax authariues
may, hawever, examine such retums and the underlying accaunting recards and may revise assessments within
Üye years.

İncone It’ithho!dine Tat

in additian ta corpomte taxes, campafıles shauld alsa calculate incame withhalding taxes and funds surcharge an
any dividends distributed. except far companies receiving dividends who are Turkish residents and Turkish
branches af foreign campanies. The incame withhalding tax rate has been changed La 15% upan the Cauncil af
Ministers’ Resalutian Na: 2006/10731. Undistributed dividends incarparated in share capital are not subject ta
income withhalding tax.

Deferred fla

The Graup recagnizes deferred tax assets and liabilities based upan temporary dilTerences arising between its
cansalidated fınancial statements as reparted for IFRS purpases and its statutary tax fınancial statements, These
differences usually result in the recognitian of revenue and expenses in different reponing periads for IFRS and
tax purpases and they are giyen belaw.

For calculatian af deferred tax asset and liabilities, the rate af 20% (2013: 20%) k used,

in Turkey, the campanies cannat fıle a cansalidated tax retum, therefare subsidiaries that have deferred tax assets
were nat netted against subsidiaries that have deferred tax liabilities.
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18. TAXATION ON INCOME (cont.)

The breakdown of balances in subsidiaries with net deferred ax assel position is as follows:

31 December
2014

3 1 December
2013

Bask difference on property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets
ReLD incentive deductions
Cam’ fonvard tax losses
Basis diffemence on inventon

Provision for employment termination benefits
Accrued vacation
Provision for leaI cases
Amonization of discount on notes receivable and payables
Expense accruals due to price regulation
Oıher
Net deferred tax asset

Movement of deferred tax assets:

Opening balance
Charge for the year
Tax expense recognized in other comprehensive income
Translation effect
Closing balance

(2.880,880) (2,202,723)
5.653,817 4,017.183
3,493.482 4,237.734

568.643 381.799
432,476 465,471
378,936 360.830
348,598 504.017
270.985 353.872
174.867 396.716

1,740.374 1,359.326
10.181.298 9,874.225

For the year ended For the year ended
3! December 2014 3 1 December 2013

9.874,225 11,892,739
421,071 (453,879)
(32,437) -

(81.561) (1.561,635)
10.181.298 9,874.225

As al 3! December 2014 and 3! December 2013, the Gmup has unused lax losses of US Dollar 45,736,494 and
41,274,585 respectively, available for offset aeainst future profıts. The Group does not have any unrecognized
deferred tax assets in 2014 (2013: Nil). The total amounl of these assets is recognized as management estimates that
these losses are recovemble based on the Group’s recent forecasts and budget.

The maturitv anaiysis ofcarrv fonvard tax losses is as follows:

- 1,550,376
12,820,173 17,221,245

128,615 139,739
2,106,873 2,277,308
2.411,750 -

17,467,411 21,188,668

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019 and afler

3! December
2014

3 1 December
2013
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19. PROVISION FOR EMPLOYMENT TERMINATİON BENEFITS

For the subsidiaries in Turkey, aceording to Turkish Labor Law, Deva and its subsidiaries are required to pay
employment termination benefıts to each employee who has completed one year of service and whose employment is
tenninated without due cause, is called up for military service, dies or who retires after completing 25 years of service
(20 years for women) and reaches the retirement age (58 for women and 60 for men).

The amount payable consists of one month’s salary limited to a maximum of US Dollar 1,619 and 1,525 (TRY
equivalent of 3,438 and 3,254, respectively) for each period of service as at 31 December 2014 and 31 December
2013, respectively. The Iiability is not funded, as there is no funding requirement.

The provision has been calculated by estimating the present value of the future probable obligation of the Group
arising from the retirement of employees. IAS 19 requires actuarial valuation methods to be developed to estimate the
entity’s obligation. Accordingly, the foliowing actuarial assumptions vere used in the calculation of the total Iiability.

The provision as of 31 December 2014 has been calculated assuming annual inilation rates of 7% and a discount rate
of ll%, resulting in real discount rates of approximately 3.74% (31 December 2013: 3.74%). The anticipated mte of
retirement was 90.09% (2013: 91.03%). it is planned that, retirement rights wiil be paid to employees at the end of the
concession periods. Accordingly, present value of the future probable obligation has been calculated based on the
concession periods. As the maximum liability is revised semi-annualiy, the maximum amount of TRY 3,541 effective
from l iuly 2015 is taken into consideration in the calculation of provision from employment termination benefits.

The employee benefıts expense is included as a component of cost of sales and operating expenses.

For the year ended For the year ended
3 1 December 2014 3 1 December 2013

Opening balance
Service cost
Interest cost
Benefıts paid
Actuarial gam
Translation efTect
Ciosing balance

2,327,356 2,889,232
957,737 967,645

79,820 52,695
(855,076) (1,106,1 14)
(I62,185) -

(I85,273) (476,102)
2.162.379 2.327356
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20. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINCENCIES

The Group provides guarantees on its borrowings and payables to third partles through collateralizing the Group’s
trade receivables and property, plant and equipnıent. The details of the Group’s commitments under mortgages,
Ietters of guarantee, promissory notes, and collaterais giyen are as follows:

31 December
2014

Amount US Dol!ars

Letters ofguarantee giyen TRY 31,321,129 13,506,891
US Dollar 64,000 64,000

Promissory notes and TRY 73,862,500 31,852,387
collaterais giyen EUR 1,772,610 2,156,195

US Dollar 12,559,834 12,559,834

Loan secured by building US Dollar 15,750,000 15,750,000

TRY 111,200,000 47,953,77!

Pledges TRY 932,718 402,224
124,245,3 02

3 1 December

2013
Amount US Dollars

Letters ofguarantee giyen TRY 26,021,638 12,192,118

Promissoıy notes and TRY 55,155,000 25,842,197
collaterais giyen EUR 1,702,707 2,342,688

US Dollar 22,590,545 22,590,545

Loan secured by building US Dollar 34,250,000 34,250,000
TRY 56,200,000 26,331,818

Pledges TRY 1,984,206 929,675

124,479,041
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21. SHARE CArITAL AND LEGAL RESERVE

Share capital

The authorized share capital of the Company is US Dollar 2,500,000,000 divided into 500,000,000 ordinaıy shares
with a nominal value of five US Dollar per share. As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, 67,650,000
ordinary shares of the 500,000,000 authorized shares have been issued and are outstanding.

Premium in excess of par

Premium in excess of par represents the difference between the nominal value of five US Dollar per share and the
proceeds received by the Company. The premium in excess of par was US Dollar 99,774,445 as at 31 December
2014(31 December 2013: US Dollar 99,774,445).

Legal reserves

The legal reserves consist of first and second legal reserves, appropriated in accordance with the Turkislı
Commercial Code. The first legal reserve is appropriated out of historical statutory profits at the rate of 5% per
annum, until the total reserve reaches 20% of the historical paid-in share capital. The second legal reserve is
appropriated afler the first legal reserve and dividends, at the rate of 10% per annum of alI cash dividend
distributions.

Shareholder Agreement

Upon formation of the Company, an agreement was entered into by the shareholders. This agreement included an
exit option for Global Equities Managernent (“GEM”) whereby in exchange for US Dollar 1, the Company
granted GEM an option to purchase additional shares up to 5% of the Company’s “total issued share capital” for a
price of US Dollar 5 per share. The total issued capital is based on the total issued capital of the Company
immediately before the exercise of the option. The Company extended the option granted to GEM Global Equities
Management SA (“GEM”) in the shareholders’ agreement dated 22 November 2006 entered into between, amongst
others and the Company (the “Shareholders’ Agreement”) and amended with a deed of amendment dated 14
December 2011 which wilI be valid from 30 June 2013 to 30 June 2015.

The option will expire on the earlier of(i) 30 June 2015 and (ii) the transfer by the Company’s shareholders of
more than 50% oftheir shares to parties other than affiliates.

The option can be exercised at the earlier of(a) twenty business days after the first date of trading in a recognized
investment exchange in which the average bid trading price reaches or exceeds US Dollar 8 per share; or (b)
immediately prior to completion of a sale to a party that is not an affiliate or shareholder of the Company of either
(i) alI of the Company’s shares; or (ii) the substantial sale of the Company’s assets and Iiabilities that would imply
that value of the Company’s shares is US Dollar 8 or more per share.

lfthe option is exercised based on the public trading of securities, GEM has the option to receive a cash payment
equal to the difference between (i) US Dollar 5 per share and (ii) the average bid trading price of the shares in the
20 business days after the exercise date of the option multiplied by the number of the shares equivalent to 5% of
the total issued share capital of the Company.

Prior to the public trading of the securities, the cost of this option was deferred and recorded as deferred share
issuance cost in the balance sheet. As of3l Decemher 2014 and 31 December 2013, the Company estimated the
fair value of the calI option liability as US Dollar 499 and US Dollar 643,654, respectively, and is accounted for as
a derivative liability and is remeasured to fair value at each reporting date through profit and loss.
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22. REVENUE
1 Ianuaıy - 1 January -

31 December 31 December
2014 2013

Human pharma revenue 194,391,080 206,786,244
Veterinaıy products revenue 12,933,860 6,568,334
Other revenue 3,207,827 3,770,509

210,532,767 217.125.087

Sales amounts are presented net of sales returns and discounts.

23. COST OF SALES

1 Ianuary- t ianuaıy
31 December 31 December

2014 2013

Raw materlais used (73,521,075) (74,979,650)
Drect labor cost (6.686,448) (7,658,085)
Production overlıeads (36,3 10,928) (35,711,726)
Depreciation and amortisation expenses (8,646,477) (10,069,688)
Change in work in process (588,890) 1,065,459
Change in fınished goods (4.922,304) (1,503,049)

(130.676,122) (128,856,739)

24. OPERATING EXPENSES

1 January - 1 Januaıy -

31 December 31 December
2014 2013

Research and development expenses (*) (2,015,298) (1,976,439)
Sales and marketing expenses (38,761,102) (46,606,350)
General administration expenses (22,748,691) (25,217.922)

(63,525,091) (73,800,711)

(*) As of 31 December 2014, the Group realized research and development expense amounting to US Dollars
2,410,643 for tangible assets and US Dollars 15,428,002 for intangible assets with the total amount of US Dollars
17,838,645 (3! December 2013: US Dollars 17,538,763). As at the balance sheet date US Dollars 10,956,834 of
the amount k from government grants and incentives (31 December 2013: US Dollars 14,048,228). Of this total
amount (.15 Dollars 15,823,347 was capitalized on intangible development costs (31 December 2013: US Dollars
15,562,324).
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24. OPERATING EXPENSES (cont.)

Employee benefıts expense
Promotional and advertising expense
Depreciadon and amortization expense
Transportation expense
Rent expense
Consultancy expense
Other operating expenses

1 January -

3 1 December
2014

(3 3,047,430>
(9,392,367)
(8,966,444)
(3,558,5 14)
(3,3 54,108)
(1,26 7,83 9)

(10,792,407)
(70,3 79, 109)

1 January -

31 December
2013

(39,443,625)
(12,156,465)

(9,318,628)
(3,797,731)
(4,645,140)
(1,582,756)
(9,677,775>

(80,622,120)

Amortization of discount on payables
Interest received from sales
with deferred settlement terms
Interest income

26. FINANCE COSTS (net)

1 January -

31 December
2013

24,306,427

78,295
3 70,5 72

24.755.294

2014 2013

(12,704,938) (9,380,035)
(689,304) (5,495,1 84)

(5,083,981) (4,002,556)
209,395 105,962

(21,555,186) (24,479,691)
(472,543) (385,569)

(40,296,557) (43,637.073)

25. INVESTMENT REVENUE

Capitalized development costs 6.854,018 6,821,409
(63,525,091) (73,800,711)

1 ianuary
31 December

2014

2 1,842,393

160,611
68 1,177

22.684.181

1 January -

31 December

Interest on bank borrowings
Foreign exchange Ioss on borrowings
Bond interest and expenses
Gam on derivative fınancial instruments
Amortization ofdiscount on receivables
Other interest expense

1 Januaıy
31 December
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27. OTHER GAİNS AND LOSSES

1 January - 1 January -

31 December 3 1 December
2014 2013

Foreign exchange (Ioss) / gam (1,302,724) 3,311,853
Change in fairvalue of caN option liability (Note2l) 643,155 (572,616)
Gam on disposal ofproperty, plant and equipment (*) 306,137 3,054,909
Other 83,681 597,360

(269,751) 6,391.506

(*) USD 2,725,236 of gam on sale of property, plant and equipment has been obtained from the dispose of
inactive Topkapı production facility on 9 Decenıber 2013, amounting to TRY 14,100,000. Disposed amount
has been collected in cash advance.

28. LOSS FROM INVESTMENT İN ASSOCİATES

The operations of Lypanosys are limited as at 31 December 2014. The details are as follows:

1 ianuaıy - 1 January -

31 December 31 December
2014 2013

Revenue - -

Loss for the year (1,872,437) (2,119,717)

Group’s share on Ioss of the associate (407,310) (461,101)

The Group’s share on total assets and İmabilities is US Dollars 1,775,345 and US Dollars 1,995,770, respectively.

29. SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group 15 currently organized into three business segments; production and sale of
human pharmaceuticals, veterinary products and other. These segments are the basis on which the Group reports its
segment information. The principal activities of each segment are as follows:

• Numan Pharrnu: Human phannaceuticals segment derives the majority of its revenues fmm the sale of branded
generic and licensed products, the manufacturing and sale of antibiotic active ingredients and empty ampoules.

• Veterinury Producıs: Veterinary products segment operates in the sector of veterinaıy drugs and agrochemicals.

• Other: Other segment includes cologne production and sale.

IFRS requires segment information to be presented under a ‘rnanagernent approach’, where segment information is
to be shown on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes.

The Group has identifıed operating segments in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chiefoperating decision maker CODM”.

The accounting policies of the reportahle segments are the same as the groups accounting policies described in Note 3.
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NOTES TC THE CCNSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
FCR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts expressed in US Dollar.)

29. SEGMENTAL INFORMATİON (coni.)

Ali of the Group’s assets are located in Turkey. There are insignifıcant operations outside Turkey.

The Group is dependent on a limited number of distribution partners in Turkey. Distribution of the Group’s
products by the two iargest wholesaiers in the Turkish market corresponded to approximately 26% and 36%.
Net human pharma revenues attributed to these wholesalers vere US Dollar 48,209,663 and US Dollar
68,212,283, respectively.

Group management has emphasised segment reporting on operational
allocate its other expenses on segment base.

For the year ended
31 December 2013

profit, therefore the Group has not

Segment resuits

lnvestment revenue
Finance costs
Cther gains and losses
Loss from investment in associates

Profit before tax
Tax expense
Net profıt for the year

24,75 5,294
(43,63 7,073)

6,39 1,506
(461,101)

1,5 16,263
(453,879)
1,062,3 84

The Group 15 dependent on a limited number of distribution partners in Turkey. Distribution of the Group’s
products by the two largest wholesalers in the Turkish market corresponded to approximately 30% and 34%.
Net human pharma revenues attributed to these wholesalers were US Doilar 60,872,146 and US Dollar
68,405,8l1, respectively.

For the year ended Human Veterinary
31 December 2014 pharma products Cther

194.391.080
(118.687.620)

(59.909,513)

External sales
Cost of sales
Cperating expenses

Segment results

lnvestment revenue
Finance costs
Cther gains and losses

12.933.860
(9.356.197)
(3.195.496)

Total

3.207.827
(2.632.305)

(420.082)

15.793.947 382.167 155.440 16.331.554

210.532.767
(130.676.122)
(63.525.091)

Loss from investment in associates

Loss before tax
Tax income
Net Ioss for the year

22.684.181
(40.296.557)

(269.751)
(407.310)

(1.957.883)
407.730

(1.550.153)

Human
pharma Veterinary products

External sales 206,786,244 6,568,334 3,770,509 217,125,087
Cost ofsales (121,647,702) (4,250,770) (2,958,267) (128,856,739)
Cperating expenses (70,374,261) (3,049,618) (376,832) (73,800,711)

Cther Total

14,764,281 (732,054) 435,410 14,467,637
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30. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

Operat in e lease commitmenis

Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognized as
an expense in the related year

At the balance sheet date, the
fail due as follows:

Not longer than 1 year
Longer tlıan 1 year and not
longer than 5 years

Not longer dian 1 year
Longer than 1 year and not
longer than 5 years

Operating lease paymenis represent rentais payable by the Group for certain of its vehicles and for the rented buildings
and warehouses. Leases are negotiated for an average term of three years and increases are ata fixed mte and expense
15 recognized ona straight-line bask over the lease term.

31. EARNINGS PER SHARE

There were no dilutive equity instruments outstanding, that would require the calculation of separate diluted eamings
per share. The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to ordinaıy equity holders of the parent is as follows:

Weighted average number of shares
Net loss for the year attributable to the shareholders

Earnings per share

For the year ended
31 December 2013

67,650,000 67,650,000
(1,617,948) (529,423)

(0.02) (0.01)

For the year ended
31 December 2014

For the year ended
31 December 2013

2,331,240 3,198,877
2,331,240 3,198,877

Group has outstanding commitments under non-cancelable operating leases, which

31 December
EUR TRY 2014

866,026 2,683,816 2,210,796

866,675 5,523,744 3,436,273
1,732,700 8,207,560 5,647,069

3 1 December
EUR TRY 2013

645,419 1,707,908 1,688,226

1,059,817 - 1,458,161
1,705,236 1,707,908 3,146,387

For the year ended
31 December 2014
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32. FOREİGN CURRENCY POSITİON

The functional currency of the Group’s subsidiaries located in Turkey is TRY. Those subsdiaries are exposed to
foreign currency fluctuations on monetary assets and Iiabilities heid in currencies other than TRY, including EUR,
USD and other currendes. The foliowing table detalis the Group’s subsidiaries’ foreign currency exposures for
each class of fınancial instruments. The fınancial assets and liabilities below are grouped in the currencies in
which the transactions are denominated.

Total Assets

Trade payables
Short-term borrowings
Long-temı borrowings
Other payables and

accrued expenses

Total Liabilities

Net foreign curreney
position

9,703,518 9,734,890 1,780,996 210,222 23,667,975

261,197 1,858,171 3,059,443 84,518 5,739,422
2,944,444 - - - 2,944,444

722,224 5,000,000 - - 6,804,203

-
- 468,940 - 473,146

3,927,865 6,858,171 3,528,383 84,518 15,961,215

5,775,653 2,876,719 (1,747,387) 125,704 7,706,760

Equivalent of

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables
Other assets

Total Assets

Trade payables
Short-term borrowings
Long-term borrowings
Other payables and accrued
expenses

Total Liabilities

Net foreign curreney
position

33,946,73 8
2,026,3 75
8,040,099

31 December 2014 US Dollar EURO CHF Other

Cash and cash equivalents 5,299,112 7,854,136 1,656,216 2,961 16,528,513
Trade receivables 2,514,826 102,216 - - 2,639.! 61
Other assets 1,889,580 1,778,538 124,780 207,261 4,500,301

Equivalent of
US Dollar

31 December 2013 US Dollar EURO CHF Other US Dollar

9,971,233 14,079,783
2,026,375 -

2,424,159 3,723,203

4,099,659 7,935

392,790 32,519

14,421,767 17,802,986 4,492,449 40,454 44,013,212

144,470 782,475 3,015,561 12,646 4,618,552
11,711,110 — — — 11,711,110
3,666,668 5,000,000 - - 10,545,973

- 6,644 - 1,153,231 1,906,464

15.522,248 5,789,119 3,015,561 1,165,877 28,782,099

(1,100,481) 12,013,867 1,476,888 (1,125,423) 15,231,1 13
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33. FINANCİAL RİSK MANAGEMENT

(a) Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group wiil be able to continue as a going concern while
maximizing the return to stakeholders through the optimization of the debt and the equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt which includes the borrowings (Note 14), cash and cash
equivalents (Note 5) and equity attributable ta equity holders of the parent, comprising issued capital and retained
earnings (Note 21).

The Group Nianagement analyzes the cost ofcapital and the risks associated with capital semiannually. The Groop
Management aims to balance its overali capital structure through the payment and receipt of dividends, and new
share issues as weli as obtaining new debt or the redemption ofexisting debt.

in addition and consistent with others in the industry, the group monilors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total
borrowings (including ‘current and non-cunent borowings’ as shown in the consolidated balance sheet) Iess cash
and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as equity’ as shown in the consolidated balance sheet pius net
debt.

During 2014, the Group’s strategy. which vas unchanged from 2013. was to maintain the gearing mtio within 35%
to 50%.

(b) Signifıcant accounting policies

The Group’s accounting policies about financial instruments are disclosed in Note 3 ta the consolidated fınancial
statements.
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33. FİNANCİAL RİSK MANACEMENT (cont.)

(c) Financial instrument cateories (cont.)

Fair value of fınancial instruments

The fair values of fınancial asseis and fınancial liabilitles are determined and grooped as follows:

• Level 1: the fair valuc of fınancial usseis and fınancial liabiliijes with standard terms and conditions and traded
on active Iiquid markets are deermined with reference ta quoted market prices;

• Levcl 2: the fair value of other fınancial assets and fınancial Iiabililies (excluding derivative instruments) are
determined in accordance with eneraiIy accepted pricing models based an discounted eash flow anaiysis using
prices from observable current market tnnsactions; and

• Level 3: the fair value of the fınancial asseis and fınancial liabilities where there is ne observable market data.
The fair value ofderivative instruments. are calculated using quoted prices. Where such prices are not available,
esıimaıe is made based on discounted cash flow anaiysis using the applicable yield cuRe for the duraıion of the
instruments for non-optional derivatives. and option pricing modeis for optional derivatives.

Based on the fair valuc hierarchy, the Groups financial assets and Iiabilities are categorized as follow:

31 December 2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial liabilities at FVTPL:
Cail option liability - 499 - 499

31 December 2013 Level 1 Levy! 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Iiabilities at FVTPL:
Cail optian Iiability - 643,654 - 643,654

There have been na transfers between Level 1, 2 or 3 during the year ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December
2013.
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33. FINANCİAL RİSK MANAGEMENT (eont.)

(d) Financial risk management objectives

The Group’s finance function provides services to the business, coordinates access ta donıestic and international
markets, manitors and manages the fınancial risks relating ta the operations of the Group. These risks include
market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk and price risk) credit risk, liquidity risk and cash
flow interest rate risk.

(e) Market risk

The Group k exposed to market dsks wiih respect ta foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The
Group seeks ta minimize external foreiizn currency risks whenever possible by entering into fonvard foreign
exchange contracts. Interest rate risk is managed by entering into a balanced. preferred ratio of fıxed / floating
borrawing arrangements.

The Group Management measures the market risks an the basis of sensitivity analysis.

(0 Foreign currency risk management

The Carnpany’s functional currency is the 135 dallar while almast alI af its operations are lacated in Turkey and,
asa result, a majority of the Graup’s revenues and casts are denorninated in Turkish Lira (“TRY”) and the Group
is exposed ta currency fluctuations between the US Dollar and other currencies.

The Graup’s business involves purchases from and limited sales ta a number of cauntries. Thase sales, expenses,
assets and liabilities are in currencies ather than the US Dollar. İn additian, the Group has debt in curencies other
than the US Dallar.

The Group’s assets’ and Iiabilities’ foreign currency pasition is presented in Nate 32.

Foreign currencv sensitivitv

The funetianal currency af the Group’s subsidiaries is TRY, Thase subsidiaries are expased ta fareign currency
fluctuations on manetary assets and İiabilities held in currencies ather than TRY, including EUR and USD. The
fallowing table details the Companv’s sensitivity ta 10% devaluation in the exchange rate af USD against TRY
and EUR against TRY. 10% is the sensitivity nte used when reparting foreign currency risk internally ta key
management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the passible change in foreign exchange rates,
The sensitivity anaiysis ineludes aniy ouıstanding foreign cuneney denominated manetary items and adjusts iheir
translatian at the period end for a lOo change in foreign currency rates.

The table below shows only impact related ta the two currencies named and assumes the rate between alI other
currencies 10 be held canstant and net of tax. Pasitive amounts in the following table represent increase in net
profıt for the period. Equity effect is nil.

Year ended 31 December 2014
Effect of US Dallar: TRY ElTect of EUR: TRY

Loss (1,071,453) (649,149)

Yearended 31 December 2013
Effect af US Dallar: TRY EfTect of EUR: TRY

Gam / (Loss) 187,901 (2,822,298)

The equity effect of 10% devaluatian in the exchange rate of USD against TRY is US Dollar 13,072,204 as the
functianal currencies af Turkish subsidiaries is Turkish Lira.
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33. FINANCİAL RİSK MANAGEMENT (coni)

(g) İnterest rate risk management

The Group has a number of borrowings with nterest rates that are based on market interest rates. Therefore the
Group 15 subject to market risk deriving from changes in interest rates, which may affect the cost of current
floating rate indebtedness and future financing. The Group management seeks to manage this risk by maintaining
an appropriate mix between flxed and floating rate borrowings. As at 3! December 2014, 25% of total
indebtedness was floating rate and mainiy denominated in Turkish Lira. İnterest rates are fıxed in short-term loans.
The Group does not enter into İong-term loans denominated in Turkish Lira.

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates nt the balance sheet date and
the stipulated change taking place at the beginning of the fınancial year and held constant throughout the reporting
period. 50 basis points is the sensitivity rate used when reporting interest rate risk internaliy to key management
personnel.

If Libor and Euribor had been 50 hasis points higher and al! other variables were held constant, net profıt for the
year ended at 3! December 2014 would decrease by US Dollar 194,413 net of tax (3! December 2013: US Dollar
136,917). IfLibor and Euribor had been 50 basis points lower, the profit of the Group for the year ended would
increase with the same absolute amount. The equity effect is ni!.

(h) Credit risk management

Credit risks refer to the risk that counterpafty wili default on its contmctual obligations resulting in fınancial Ioss
to the Group. The Group has adopted a policy of oniy dealing with creditwonhy counterparties and obtaining
suffıcient collateral where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of fınancial İoss from defaults, The
Group’s exposure and credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored.

(i) Liquidity risk management

The Group’s management has built an appropriate Iiquidity risk management framework for the management of
the Group’s short, medium and long term funding and Iiquidity management requirements.

The Group’s Iiquidity requirements arise primarily from the need to fund working capital, capital expenditure
program relating to the construction and relocation of production plants and the development and expansion of the
geographic coverage of operations as velI as product portfolio through selective acquisitions. The Company has
financed its operations and investments primarily by means of capital increases subsequent to the acquisition of
Deva.

The Group manages Iiquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing
facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profile of fınancial
assets and Iiabilities.

57



E
A

S
T

P
II

A
R

M
A

L
T

D
.

A
N

D
S

U
H

S
ID

IA
R

IE
S

N
O

T
E

S
T

O
T

H
E

C
O

N
S

O
L

İD
A

T
E

D
F

İN
A

N
C

İA
L

S
T

A
T

E
N

İE
N

T
S

F
O

R
T

H
E

Y
E

A
R

E
N

D
E

D
31

D
E

C
E

M
B

E
R

20
14

(A
rn

ou
nl

s
ex

pr
es

se
d

in
U

S
D

ol
la

r)

33
.

F
IN

A
N

C
İA

L
R

İS
K

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

(c
on

t.
)

(1
)

L
iq

ui
di

ty
ri

sk
rn

an
ag

en
ıe

n
t

<
co

nt
)

L
ig

ui
di

ty
an

ai
vs

is

T
he

fo
ll

ow
in

g
ta

bl
e

de
ta

ll
s

th
e

G
ro

up
’s

ex
pe

ct
ed

m
at

ur
it

y
fo

r
its

no
n-

de
ri

va
ti

ve
fı

na
nc

ia
l

İi
ab

il
it

ie
s.

T
he

ta
bl

es
be

lo
w

ha
ve

be
en

dr
nw

n
up

ba
se

d
on

th
e

un
di

sc
ou

nt
ed

co
nt

ra
ct

ua
l

m
at

ur
it

ie
s

of
th

e
fı

na
nc

ia
l

Ii
ab

il
it

ie
s

in
cl

ud
in

g
in

te
re

st
to

re
pa

y
th

e
İi

ab
il

it
y

be
fo

re
its

m
at

ur
it

y.

31
D

ec
en

ıh
er

20
14

B
an

k
bo

rr
ow

iı
ıg

s
an

d

bo
nd

s
is

su
ed

T
ra

de
pa

ya
bl

es
D

ue
to

re
la

te
d

pa
rt

ie
s

C
as

hf
lo

w

th
at

w
ilI

ac
cr

ue
to

th
os

e
li

ab
il

it
ie

s
ex

ce
pt

w
he

re
th

e
G

ro
up

is
en

ti
tl

ed
an

d
in

te
ns

e

ac
co

rd
in

g
to

th
e

ag
re

em
en

t
L

es
s

th
an

3
ni

on
tlı

31
D

ec
em

be
r

20
13

B
an

k
bo

rr
ow

in
gs

L
ia

bi
li

ti
es

du
e

to
ta

x
am

ne
st

y
T

ra
de

pa
ya

bl
es

D
ue

to
re

la
te

d
pa

rt
ie

s

C
ar

ry
in

g
va

lu
e

3
—

6
m

on
tlı

6—
9

m
on

th
9

m
on

th
—

1
ye

ar
1

—
3

ye
ar

3
+

ye
ar

17
0,

54
6,

79
5

19
3,

72
7,

61
8

37
,5

63
,6

24
45

,4
28

,7
41

4,
29

1,
92

0
6,

92
6,

59
2

36
,7

36
,8

85
62

,7
79

,8
56

16
,0

70
,0

24
16

,1
28

,1
84

16
,0

80
,7

50
47

,4
34

-
-

-
-

24
,9

37
24

,9
37

24
,9

37
-

-
-

-
-

18
6,

64
1,

75
6

20
9,

88
0,

73
9

53
,6

69
,3

11
45

,4
76

,1
75

4,
29

1,
92

0
6,

92
6,

59
2

36
,7

36
,8

85
62

,7
79

,8
56

C
as

hf
lo

w
ac

co
rd

in
g

to
th

e
L

es
s

th
an

3
C

ar
ry

in
g

va
lu

e
ag

re
em

en
t

rn
on

th
3

—
6

rn
on

th
6—

9
rn

on
th

9
rn

on
th

—
1

ye
ar

1
—

3
ye

ar
3

+
ye

ar

16
3,

50
7,

00
1

18
9,

17
4,

18
1

52
,9

87
,8

99
15

,9
73

,7
03

7,
46

1,
04

6
10

,0
79

,4
30

88
,3

21
,3

65
14

,3
50

,7
38

19
8,

44
3

25
4,

93
0

18
4,

88
8

-
-

-
70

,0
42

-

16
,7

05
,2

63
16

,7
82

,8
80

16
,5

97
.7

45
18

5,
13

5
-

-
-

-

26
.7

49
26

.7
49

26
.7

49
-

-
-

-
-

18
0,

43
7,

45
6

20
6,

23
8,

74
0

69
,7

97
,2

81
16

,1
58

,8
38

7,
46

1,
04

6
10

,0
79

,4
30

88
,3

91
,4

07
14

,3
50

,7
38

58



EASTPHARMA LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TC THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts exprcsscd in US Dollar.)

34. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

None.
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